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Chairman’s 
Message 

It gives me immense pleasure to present before you, 
the 11th Annual Report of your Company. The Audited 
Accounts of the Company for the financial year 2022-
23, along with the Directors’ Report and reports of 
Auditors and comments of Comptroller and Auditor 
General of India have already been circulated.  

As we all are aware, your Company was established with 
the mandate of High Speed Rail Corridor Feasibility 
Studies for and on behalf of Ministry of Railways. Later, 
it expanded its horizons and at present, the Company 
is executing PMC contracts awarded by RVNL & 
JSW and also acting as bidding branch of RVNL (the 
holding Company). The contribution of HSRC Infra 
Services Limited in the domain of Transportation 

Pradeep Gaur 
Chairman 

In 2022-23, HSRC Infra Services 
Limited increased its Turnover 
from H 1585.29Lakhs to H 1875.18 
Lakhs, resulting in an increase of 
18.29 % over the previous year.

Distinguished Shareholders,

Infrastructure has been amply demonstrated by its 
performance and presence in 19 locations across the 
length and breadth of the Country. 

Financial Performance

In 2022-23, HSRC Infra Services Limited increased its 
Turnover from Rs 1585.29 Lakhs to Rs 1875.18 Lakhs, 
resulting in an increase of 18.29 % over the previous 
year. The Profit After Tax (PAT) of the Company 
increased from Rs 190.61 lakhs in 2021-22 to Rs 330.37 
Lakhs in 2022-23, resulting in an increase of 73.32% 
over the previous year.

Physical performance

At present, the Core Activity of HSRC Infra Services 
Ltd., includes domestic and international bidding 
on behalf RVNL and execution of PMC Contracts. As 
regards, bidding activities, your company has done 
remarkable task by participating in 114 bids valuing 
Rs. 67,703 Cr. during FY 2022-23 on behalf of RVNL 
and as a result thereof, RVNL has bagged 26 Contracts 
valuing Rs. 18767 Crores. As regards execution of PMC 
Contracts, the numbers of Contracts reached have 
increased from 5 to 13 resulting in increase of PMC 
turnover from Rs 1487.49 Lakhs to Rs 1657.39 Lakhs 
(11.42 % increase over past year). I am happy to report 

that HR has taken commendable initiatives in 2022-
23 for deputing required manpower to various PMC 
sites all over the India.

Corporate Governance 

HSRC Infra Services Limited maintains a robust 
system of checks and balances to ensure that the 
authority of decision making is exercised with due 
care and responsibility, to meet the aspirations 
of Shareholders and society. Your Company 
complies meticulously with all legal requirements 
and Government guidelines regarding Corporate 
Governance. A Report on Corporate Governance and 
Management Discussion and Analysis forms part of 
the Annual Report.

Acknowledgements 

In the end, I would like to mention that all the 
achievements of HSRC Infra Services Limited, would 
not have been possible without exemplary efforts 
made by the Core & Support team involved in Bidding 
& PMC activities support provided by the holding 
company RVNL and Ministry of Railways.

I, express my sincere thanks to Rail Vikas Nigam 
Limited (Holding Company), Department of Public 
Enterprises, Financial Institutions, C&AG’s office, our 
bankers and other stakeholders in various projects 
for their unstinted cooperation to HSRC Infra Services 
Limited. I would also like to place on record my deep 
appreciation for the exemplary dedication of all my 
fellow HSRC Infra Services Limited Colleagues, who 
have been pillars of strength for the Company and 
have delivered their best, despite various limitations 
& challenges.

(Pradeep Gaur) 
Chairman



DIRECTORS’ REPORT

HSRC INFRA SERVICES LIMITED

(Formerly known as “High Speed Rail Corporation of India Limited”)
(A Wholly owned Subsidiary of Rail Vikas Nigam Limited)

Distinguished Shareholders,

The Directors of your Company are privileged to present 
the 11th Annual Report of the Company together with 
the Audited Financial Statements and Auditors’ Report 
for the year ended 31st March, 2023.

The Company is a wholly-owned Subsidiary of Rail Vikas 
Nigam Limited (RVNL), which is a Navratna CPSE under 
the Ministry of Railways, Government of India. In the 
year 2020-2021, the name of the Company was changed 
from “High Speed Rail Corporation of India Limited” to 
“HSRC Infra Services Limited”. Your Company is presently 
engaged in managing Project Management Consultancy 
Contracts awarded by RVNL and managing the Bidding 
activities of RVNL. 

The business and financial performance of the Company 
during the year 2022-23 was as under: -

BUSINESS PERFORMANCE & STATE OF 
AFFAIRS

Project Consultancy Services Contracts:

HSRC Infra Services Ltd is presently executing the 
following PMC Contracts awarded by RVNL: -

1.	 Kolkata-JOKA: LOA No.: RVNL/KOL/M/JOKA/PMC/2/
LOA/1710 dated 15.12.2020.  

	 Name of the Work: PMC Contract for a) Site 
development of Metro Car Depot at Joka, b) Setting 
up of Metro Car Depot at Joka and c) Construction of 
Metro viaduct & stations from Majerhat to Mominpur 
in connection with Joka-Esplanade Metro Railway 
Project in Kolkata West Bengal.

	 Date of Completion inclusive 6 month DLP: 31-12-2023 

	 CA Value: Rs. 16.01 Cr

2.	 Jhansi: LOA No.: RVNL/M/CNB/JHS/PMC/LOA/01 
dated 20.10.2020.

	 Name of the Work: PMC Contract for “Construction 
of PEB sheds structures buildings boundary wall, 
water supply arrangement drainage, sewerage, 
road works, track works, power supply and general 
electrical works, telecommunication works and 
supply, installation and commissioning of machinery 
and plant in connection with setting up of Rail Coach 
Naveenikaran Karkhana at Jhansi, Uttar Pradesh 
(India).

	 Date of Completion inclusive 6 month DLP: 
19.04.2023 

	 CA Value: Rs. 7.83 Cr.

3.	 Waltair: LOA No. RVNL/CPM/II/WAT/TIG-VZM/3rd 
Line/PKG5-B/PMC dated 23.12.2020.

	 Name of the Work: PMC Contract for “Construction 
of Roadbed, Minor bridges, Major bridges and ROBs/
RUBs, S&T, OHE and general electrification works for 
3rd line of track between Gotlam (Incl) (KM459.540)-
Vizianagaram (Inc) (KM 818.65 on HWH-VSKP Main 
line) for a length of 6KM and Construction of New 
Single line BG track, Bye Pass line between Gotlam 
and Nellimarla (8.035km) on HWH-VSKP main line 
in Waltair Division of East Coast Railway, Andhra 
Pradesh State, India.” Package 5B 

	 Date of Completion inclusive 6-month DLP: 
18.01.2024 

	 CA Value: Rs. 6.89 Cr

4.	 Kolkata-AVNS: LOA No. RVNL/KOL/METRO/NEW 
GARIA- AIRPORT/PMC/LOA/1414 dated 06.11.202.

	 Name of the Work: PMC Contract for “A.PACKAGE-
1(BLT):” Construction of Double Line Ballast less Track 
(BLT) for elevated viaduct portion between Nicco 
Park having ch. (13841.585 m) to Titumir Ch.(25891.527) 
including points and crossings, etc.in connection 
with construction of metro railway corridor from 
new Garia to Airport Corridor, in the city of Kolkata” 
and for B.PACKAGE-2 (ANV-3/1): “Construction of 
viaduct including related works for 2.025 km length 
from chainage 15442.610 to chainage 17027.740 
between WBSETCL substation Salt Lake (P429) to 
Mahisbathan Bridge (CP-481) (near NKDA office), 
P-575 to P-579 & P-650 to CPP-667 excluding station 
areas in New Garia-Airport corridor of Kolkata Metro 
railway line package-ANV-3/1”.

	 Date of Completion inclusive 6 month DLP: 
05/05/24.

	 CA Value: Rs. 8.57 Crores

5.	 Bhopal: LOA No.: RVNL/BPL/ELECT/BPL- ET/BNI/
TSS/PMC dated- 17.11.2021.

	 Name of the Work: PMC Contract for “Design, Supply, 
Erection, Testing & Commissioning of 132 kV/25 kV 
Traction Sub-Station, Feeding Post, Fixed Capacitor 
Bank System and Other Associated Works at Budhai 
(BNI) Traction Sub- station in connection with 3rd line 
of Bhopal-Itarsi Section of Bhopal Division of West 
Central Railway, in State of Madhya Pradesh (India).

	 Date of completion: 17.11.22; 

	 Updated CA Value: Rs. 87.26 Lakhs. 

6.	 Indore Metro: LOA No. RVNL/IND Metro/HSRC/PMC/
LOA/237 dated 31.05.2022.

	 Name of the Work: PMC Contract for “Package-IN 
03: Design and construction of Elevated Viaduct 
between Ch.14+488 & Ch.25+415, Viaduct connecting 
Depot leading up to Interface Location, Nine (9) 
Elevated Metro Rail Stations including all Civil, 
Structural, Roof Structure, Mechanical, Electrical 
and Plumbing (MEP) works, Architectural finishes, 
Facade, Entry/Exits, FOB, Viaduct within the stations 
including Transition spans" for Indore Metro Rail 
Projects Yellow Line. (Package-IN 03) B. Package-
IN 02: Design and Construction Seven (7) Elevated 
Metro Rail Stations including viaduct portion within 
the stations and transition spans on either side of the 
stations, Entry- Exit Structures, Architectural finishes, 
E&M works etc."(ISBT/MR 10 Flyover, Chandragupta 
Square, Hira Nagar, Bapat Square, Meghdoot Garden, 
Vijay Nagar & Radisson Square)" (PKG-IN 02). 

	 Date of Completion inclusive 2-month DLP: 
31.07.2023 

	 CA Value: Rs. 01.95 Cr

7.	 ADI/Dhasa-Jetalsar: LOA No.: RVNL/ADI/RE/DAS-
JLR/HSRC/PMC/LOA dated 01.08.2022 

	 Name of the Work: PMC Contract for “"Design, 
Supply, Erection, Testing & Commissioning of 25KV,50 
Hz, Single Phase, Conventional Traction over Head 
Equipment, Switching Stations and other associated 
works, associated signal & Telecommunication work, 
civil Engineering work i.e., Staff Quarters, T.W. Sidings, 
Service buildings and electrical general services, 
works for Railway Electrification between stations 
Dhasa (Excl.) - Jetalsar (Incl.) (104.44 RKM/118.09 TKM) 
in Bhavnagar Division of Western Railway in the state 
of Gujarat, India". 

	 Date of Completion inclusive 6-month DLP:  
01-09-2025

	 CA Value: Rs.7.35 Cr

8.	 Indore-Budni New Line: LOA No. INDB-BNI/PMC/
HSRC Crores dated 30.08.2022 Name of the Work: 
PMC Contract for “Construction of Tunnel, Viaduct, 
ROBs/RUBs and Waterways in connection with 
Construction of electrified new BG railway line 
between Mangliya, Gaon (Indore) is Budni Station 
(198 KMs) of West Central Railway and Western 
Railway in Madhya Pradesh State, India". 

	 Date of Completion inclusive 6-month DLP: 
29.08.2027 

	 CA Value: Rs. 54.51 Cr
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9.	 Kolkata (HSRC-Kol-3): LOA No.: RVNL/KOL/Metro/
NGA/CPM/KOL-1/PMC/980 dated 27.08.2022 

	 Name of the Work: PMC Contract for “Name of 
Work: PMC for package-1(ANS-1), package-2(ANV-1), 
Package-2(ANV-1), package-3(ANV-2), package-
4(ANS- 2), package-5(BLT) of metro rail Kolkata 
Under CPM-I. 

	 Date of Completion inclusive 6-month DLP: 

	 CA Value: Rs. 2.61 Cr

10.	 Vadodara: LOA No.: RVNL/BRC/PMC/DB dated 
13.10.2022 

	 Name of the Work: PMC Contract for “Construction 
of PEB Sheds, structures, buildings, overhead tank 
with water supply arrangement, drainage, road, track 
works, signaling & telecommunication power supply 
arrangement, OHE, general electrical works and 
supply, erection & commissioning of machinery & 
plant in connection with setting up of POH workshop 
for electric locomotives at Dabhoi, Vadodara, Gujarat 
(India)”. 

	 Date of Completion inclusive 6-month DLP: 
13.10.2024 

	 CA Value: Rs. 1.91 Cr

11.	 Lucknow RE: LOA No.: RVNL/LKO/RE/JNH-PFM/
PMC dated 05.01.2023 

	 Name of the Work: PMC Contract for “Design, 
Supply, Erection, Testing, Commissioning of 2X25 
kV AC OHE and PSI Works between Phaphamau 
(Excl.)- Janghai (Excl.) section on Lucknow Division 
of Northern Railway for UP gradation of Electric 
Traction System in Connection with Doubling of 
Track between Phaphamau (Excl.)- Janghai (Excl.) 
section on Lucknow Division of Northern Railway in 
the state of Uttar Pradesh India. (RKM 47/TKM 125).

	 Date of Completion inclusive 6-month DLP: 
04.07.2025 

	 CA Value: Rs.3.44 Cr

12.	 GM/Mech/SCR: LOA No.: RVNL/M/KZJ/PMC/1/ dated 
04.01.2023 

	 Name of the Work: PMC Contract for “Construction 
of setting up of Wagon Repair Workshop at Kazipet, 
Telangana through Engineering, Procurement and 
Construction (EPC) Contract". 

	 Date of Completion inclusive 6-month DLP: 
03.07.2025 

	 CA Value: Rs. 8.14 Cr

13.	 LKO/S&T: LOA No.: GM/S&T/RVNL/JNH-PFM/PMC 
dated 23.01.2023 

	 Name of the Work: PMC Contract for “"Provision of S&T 
system supply, Installation, Testing & Commissioning 
from JNH(Excl.)-PFM(Excl.) (46.79km) in connection 

with doubling with Electrification of JNH-PFM 
sections, NR Lucknow Division, Utter Pradesh, India. 

	 Date of Completion inclusive 6-month DLP: 
22.07.2025 

	 CA Value: Rs.2.28 Cr

14.	 Ahmedabad (PNU-SIOB): LOA No.: RVNL/RE/ADI/
HSRC/PNU-SIOB dated 19.04.2023 

	 Name of the Work: PMC Contract for “Design, 
Supply, Erection, Testing & Commissioning of 25 KV, 
AC, 50 HZ, Single Phase, Traction High Rise Over Head 
Equipment, Traction Sub Stations, Switching Stations, 
and other associated works, Civil engineering works 
i.e. Service works and Signal & Telecommunication 
works for Railway Electrification of PNU (excl.)-SIOB 
Double Line Section of Ahmedabad Division of 
Western Railway in the Gujarat state of Gujrat. 

	 Date of Completion inclusive 6-month DLP: 
18.04.2024 

	 CA Value: Rs.1.42 Cr

15.	 LKO (SG-MALA-PLT): LOA No.: GM/S&T/RVNL/JNH-
PFM/PMC dated 13.04.2023 Name of the Work: Project 
Management Consultancy for "Provision of S&T 
system supply, Installation, Testing & Commissioning 
from Shahgarh-Mala -Pilibhit in connection with 
Gauge Conversion work of SG-Mala-PBE sections, 
NER Lucknow Division, Uttar Pradesh, India. 

	 Date of Completion inclusive 6-month DLP: 
12.04.2025 

	 CA Value: Rs. 94.49 Lakhs

16.	 RDSS (MP): LOA No.: RVNL/B/E/RDSS/PMC/
Part-1 (Loose)/NoA dated 27-04-2023 Name of 
the Work: Project Management Consultancy for 
"Supply, Installation, Testing and Commissioning of 
33/11KV line associated works such as 33/11KV Line 
Bifurcation, 33/11KV Line Interconnection and 33/11KV 
Line Conductor Augmentation, additional 11KV bay 
at 33KV sub-station augmentation of distribution 
transformer sub-stations with associate 11KV new 
lines, LT line on AB cable, conversion of bare LT line 
on AB Cable, augmentation on LT AB cable, 11KV line 
crossing on agriculture and non-agriculture feeders, 
other associated woks and supporting works such 
as DP's, TP's and crossing etc. under Revamped-
Reforms-Based and Result-Linked Distribution 
Sector Scheme (RDSS) of Distribution Company 
(DISCOM), state of Madhya Pradesh, India." 

	 Date of Completion inclusive 6-month DLP: 
26.04.2026 

	 CA Value: Rs. 1.57 Cr

17.	 Ahmedabad-Surat Metro: LOA No.: RVNL/RE/
ADI/HSRC/METRO dated 08.05.2023 Name of the 
Work: Project Management Consultancy to HSRC 
Infra Services Ltd. on nomination basis for "Supply, 
erection, testing and commissioning of power 

supply receiving & distribution system, 750 v dc 
third rail traction electrification and Scada system 
for Ahmedabad metro rail project phase-ii & supply, 
erection, testing and commissioning of power 
supply receiving & distribution system, 750 v dc third 
rail traction electrification and Scada system for 
Ahmedabad metro rail project Phase-I. 

	 Date of Completion inclusive 6 month DLP: 
07/05/2027 

	 CA Value: Rs.12.26 Cr

18.	 SIPCOT (Chennai): LOA No.: RVNL/CPM/MAS/CMRL/
HSRC/LOA/001 dated 24-05-2023 

	 Name of the Work: Project Management 
Consultancy contract for the Construction of 
Elevated Viaduct (Approximate Length of 10 km), 
Nine (9) Elevated Metro Stations at Sholinganallur 
Lake-I, Sholinganallur Lake- II, Semmeancheri-I, 
Semmeancheri-II Gandhinagar Navalur, Siruseri, 
Siruseri Sipcot-1, Siruseri Sipcot-2 and Stabling 
Viaduct at SIPCOT.

	 Date of Completion: 23.11.2023 

	 CA Value: Rs. 9.00 Lakh

19.	 Mumbai Metro: LOA No.: RVNL/Mumbai/Metro Line 
2B/LOA dated 06-07-2023 

	 Name of the Work: PMC Contract for “Design 
Manufacturing, Supply, Installation, Testing and 
Commissioning of Nos. 110KV Receiving Substation 
including 110 KV, 33KV & 25 KV Cabling work, 
complete 25 KV overhead catenary system along with 
switching station, 33KV Auxiliary Power distribution 
system including 33/0.415 KV Auxiliary Sub-station 
(ASS) and Complete SCADA system for main line & 
Depot of Mumbai Metro Line 2B of MMRDA. 

	 Date of Completion inclusive 6-month DLP: 
05.01.2025 

	 CA Value: Rs.1.03 Cr.

20.	 Indore Metro New: LOA No.: RVNL/Indore/HSRC/
PMC/LOA/001 dated 14-07-2023 Name of the Work: 
PMC Contract for “Project management consultancy 
contract top HSRC Infra Services Ltd. on nomination 
basis for the works being managed by RVNL Indore 
PIU. 

	 Date of Completion inclusive 6-month DLP:  
14-02-2025 

	 CA Value: Rs. 1.64 Cr
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Contracts and Arrangements with Related 
Parties

Most of the Contracts/Arrangements/Transactions 
entered by the Company during the financial year 
with Related Parties were in the ordinary course of 
business and on Arm’s Length Basis. Information on the 
Transactions with Related parties pursuant to section 
134(3)(h) of the Companies Act,2013 read with Rule 8(2) 
of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 are given in 
Annexure-I in Form AOC-2 and the same forms part of 
this Report.

Particulars of Loans, Investment and 
Guarantee

During the period under review, the Company has 
not advanced any loans/ given guarantees/ made 
investments under section 186 of the Companies Act, 
2013.

Constitution of Internal Complaints 
Committee under the Sexual Harassment of 
Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition 
and Redressal) Act, 2013 & Disclosure Under 
Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace 
(Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 
2013 

The Policy of the Holding Company i.e., Rail Vikas 
Nigam Limited applies to the company & company has 
complied with provisions relating to the constitution 
of Internal Complaints Committee under the Sexual 
Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, 
Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 & Disclosure Under 

Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, 
Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013.

Statement on declaration given by 
independent directors under sub-section (6) 
of section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013

Company is not required to appoint Independent 
directors as per section 149(4) of the Companies Act, 2013.

Policy developed and implemented by the 
company on corporate social responsibility 
initiatives (CSR) taken during the year

The Provisions of Section 135 relating to corporate social 
responsibility (CSR) were not applicable to the Company 
during the year.

Presidential Directive

No Presidential Directive was received during the year.

Cost records 

The provisions of sub-section (1) of section 148 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 was not applicable during period 
under review.

Integral Reports 

“Management Discussion and Analysis Report” and 
“Corporate Governance Report” forms an integral part of 
this Director’s Report, which are placed at Annexure-II 
& III.

Board of Directors

The Board of Directors consists of five (5) Part- time Directors nominated by the Holding Company, Rail Vikas Nigam 
Limited as on the date of this report are mentioned below: -

Sr. 
No.

Name of Director DIN Designation Date of Joining

1. Mr. Pradeep Gaur 07243986 Director 10.09.2018
2. Mr. Vinay Singh 03324677 Director 12.09.2019
3. Mr. Rajesh Prasad 08585975 Director 03.03.2020
4. Mr. Sanjeeb Kumar 03383641 Director 10.07.2020
5. Mrs. Anupam Ban 07797026 Director 13.02.2023

Sr. 
No.

Name of Director DIN Designation Date of cessation 

1. Mr. Ajay Kumar 08249293 Director 31.01.2023

The following Directors or KMP ceased to hold office during the year 2022-23:

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

The significant indicators of financial performance of the Company for the financial year 2022-23 are given below:

Amount (J in lakhs) 

S. No Particulars FY 2022-23 FY 2021-22

1 Authorized Share Capital 5000 5000
2. Subscribed & Paid-up share Capital 4500 4500
3. Total Income 1875.18 1585.29
4. Revenue from operation  1657.39 1487.49
5. Profit before Tax 442.83 250.12
6. Net Worth 5001.56 4671.18
7. Earnings Per Share 

a). Basic 0.73 0.99
b). Diluted 0.73 0.76

During the Financial year 2022-23, Paid-up Share Capital 
of the Company was Rs. 4500 Lakhs. The Current 
Liabilities for the F.Y. 2022-23 were Rs.178.38 Lakhs, which 
shows an increase of Rs. 98.49 Lakhs over the previous 
year. The current assets for the F.Y. 2022-23 were Rs. 
5164.88 Lakhs which shows an increase of Rs. 420.90 
Lakhs over the previous year.

During the year, Revenue from operations was Rs. 1657.39 
Lakhs; the other income has increased to Rs. 217.79 Lakhs 
from Rs. 97.80 Lakhs the previous year. The Profit / Loss 
after Tax (PAT) was Rs. 330.37 Lakhs.

Capital Structure

As on 31.03.2023, the authorized share capital of the 
Company was Rs. 5000 Lakhs and the paid-up share 
capital of the Company was Rs. 4500 Lakhs during the 
financial year. There has been no Change in the Capital 
Structure during the year under review. 

Rail Vikas Nigam Limited, Holding Company holds the 
entire share capital of the Company.

Dividend

The Company has not declared any dividend for the 
financial year 2022-23.

Fixed Deposits

The Company has not accepted any fixed deposits from 
public during the year under review.

Details of Significant and Material Orders 
passed by the Regulators or Courts or 
Tribunals impacting the Going Concern Status 
and Company’s Operations in future.

No Significant and Material Orders passed by the 
Regulators or Courts or Tribunals impacting the Going 
Concern Status and Company’s Operations in future 
during the year.

Conservation of Energy, Technology 
Absorption and Foreign Exchange Earning 
and Outgo 

The provisions of conservation of energy, technology 
absorption is not applicable to the Company.   During the 
year under review, there is no foreign exchange earnings, 
but there are foreign exchange outgo on Travel and 
Consultancy related to bidding in foreign Countries.

Subsidiaries, Joint Ventures and Associate 
Companies, names of companies which have 
become or ceased to be its Subsidiaries, joint 
ventures, or associate companies during 
the year & highlights of performance of 
subsidiaries, associates and joint venture 
companies and their contribution to the 
overall performance of the company during 
the period under report

There are no Subsidiary/ Joint Venture/Associate 
Companies within the meaning of Section 2(87) and 
Section 2(6) of the Companies Act, 2013.

Change in the Nature of Business and Material 
Changes and Commitments affecting 
Financial Position between the end of the 
Financial Year and Date of Report

There are no Changes in the Nature of Business and 
Material Changes and Commitments affecting Financial 
Position between the end of the Financial Year and Date 
of Report

Statement on Compliance of Applicable 
Secretarial Standards

During the year, Company has complied with the 
applicable provisions of the Secretarial Standards (SS-1 & 
SS-2) as issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of 
India (ICSI) to the extent possible.
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Sr. 
No.

Name of Director DIN Designation
Date of 
Appointment

1. Mrs. Anupam Ban 07797026 Director 13.02.2023

The following Directors or KMP have been appointed during the year 2022-23:

Number of Board Meetings

The Board of Directors met five (5) times during the financial year 2022-23:

Sr. 
No.

Number of Meetings Date of Meeting

1. 45th Board Meeting 1st June, 2022
2. 46th Board Meeting 5th August, 2022
3. 47th Board Meeting 26th October, 2022
4. 48th Board Meeting 24th January, 2023
5. 49th Board Meeting 24th February, 2023 

Directors’ Responsibility Statement

Pursuant to Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, 
the Board of Directors confirms that:

a)	 In the preparation of annual accounts, the applicable 
accounting standards had been followed along with 
proper explanation relating to material departures;

b)	 The directors had selected such accounting policies 
and applied them consistently and made judgments 
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as 
to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of 
the Company at the end of financial year and of the 
profit of the company of that year;

c)	 The directors had taken proper and sufficient 
care for the maintenance of adequate accounting 
records in accordance with the provisions of the 
Act for safeguarding the assets of the company 
and for preventing and detecting frauds and other 
irregularities;

d)	 The directors had prepared the annual accounts on a 
going concern basis; and 

e)	 The directors had devised proper systems to ensure 
compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws 
and that such systems were adequate and operating 
effectively.

Pursuant to section 134 (3) (a) and of the Companies Act, 
2013 read with Rule 12 (1) of the Companies (Management 
and Administration) Rules 2014, the “Extract of Annual 
Return (MGT-9)” and as per Section 92 (3) of the 

Companies Act, 2013, Annual Return will be available on 
the website of the Company i.e., http://hsrc.in/.

Auditors

The Comptroller and Auditor General of India (C&AG) vide 
letter no. CA.V/COY/CENTRAL GOVERNMENT, HSRCIL 
(0)/554 dated 31.08.2022 has appointed M/s. Gupta Nayar 
& Co. as Statutory Auditor of the Company for the year 
2022-2023. Board also noted that M/s. Gupta Nayar & Co. 
has also given consent for the same.

The Board would like to place on record their sincere thanks 
for the valuable services rendered by Statutory Auditors.

Comments of Comptroller & Auditor General 
of India

The Comptroller & Auditor General of India has 
undertaken supplementary audit on the accounts of 
the Company for the year ended 31st March, 2023 under 
Section 139 (5) of the Companies Act, 2013. The comments 
of the C&AG on the Annual Accounts of the Company for 
the year ended 31st March, 2023 is NIL.

Explanations or comments by the Board on 
every qualification, reservation or adverse 
remark or disclaimer made by the Auditor

Explanations or replies of the Board on qualifications/
reservations/adverse remarks, disclaimers in the Audit 
Report issued by the Statutory Auditor of the Company 
shall also form part of this report.

Details in Respect of Frauds Reported by 
Auditors under Sub-Section (12) of Section 143 
of the Companies Act, 2013

During the year under review, there were no frauds 
reported by statutory auditors of the Company to the 
Board under section 143(12) of the Companies Act, 2013

Compliance of Companies Act, 2013 & filing 
of all disclosures in Statutory forms with the 
Ministry of Corporate Affairs

During the year under review, the Company has complied 
with the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 & has filed all 
the disclosures in statutory forms with the Ministry of 
Corporate Affairs.

Particulars of Employees 

During the year 2022-23, the Company has 01 Regular, 
02 Deputationists, 35 Contract Engineers, 01 Contract CS, 
04 Advisors (Experts), 11 Outsourced Employees. Besides, 
The Company also has more than 250 outsourced 
Engineers/experts/others hired on need basis for various 
PMC sites all over the India.

Secretarial Audit

During the year, under review provisions of section 204 
relating to secretarial audit are not applicable.

Acknowledgements

We record our appreciation and thanks to the Ministry of 
Railways and Holding Company, RVNL for their continued 
support to the Company, and also the employees of the 
Holding Company for their efforts to take the company 
forward.

						      For and on behalf of Board of Directors

	 Sd/-	 Sd/-
	 (Rajesh Prasad)	 (Sanjeeb Kumar)
Place: Delhi	 Director	 Director
Date: 29.08.2023	 (DIN: 08585975)	 (DIN: 03383641)
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Annexure-I

Form No. AOC-2

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the  
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related parties 
referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm’s length transactions 
under third proviso thereto

1.	 Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis: 

	 HSRC Infra Services Limited has not entered into any contract or arrangement or transaction with its related 
parties which is not at arm’s length during financial year 2022-23 

2.	 Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis:

	 (a)	 Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship: Rail Vikas Nigam Limited: Holding Company

	 (b)	 Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions: Project Management Consultancy Contracts & Business
		 Development of RVNL 

	 (c)	 Duration of the contracts / arrangements/transactions: Ongoing

	 (d)	 Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including the value, if any: NIL

	 (e)	 Date(s) of approval by the Board, if any:

		  i).	 Project Management Consultancy Contracts valuing Rs 13177.24 Lakhs

		  ii).	 Business Development Activities of RVNL 

	 (f)	 Amount paid as advances, if any: NIL

Annexure-II

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

An Overview

The company was incorporated on 25th July, 2012 in the 
name of High Speed Rail Corporation of India; as a wholly 
owned Subsidiary (WOS) of Rail Vikas Nigam Limited, 
RVNL is a Navratna CPSE under the Ministry of Railways, 
Government of India. Later the name was changed 
to HSRC Infra Services Limited, under Certificate of 
Incorporation issued by ROC Delhi on 09.10.2020.

Mission

HSRCISL is committed to efficient, cost-effective and 
time-bound delivery of construction and infrastructure 
development projects by providing comprehensive 
solutions from their inception to commissioning, 
through adoption of “best-in-the-industry” practices.

Vision

To emerge as a trusted leader in the construction and 
development of rail, road and other infrastructure 
projects in India and abroad and to build a pool 
of expertise in global construction, maintenance, 
supervision and operational practices

Objectives

•	 To develop specialized human resources for project 
implementation by skill development training and 
developing expertise for specific areas related to 
Transportation and Civil infrastructure in general 
and Railway Infrastructure in particular.

•	 To expand existing in-house knowledge & expertise 
base to provide consulting services.

•	 To expand expertise and knowledge base for 
optimum utilization of existing assets & resources 
as well as to augment capacity in order to meet 
emerging specialized transportation infrastructure 
needs.

•	 To maintain a cost effective organizational set up to 
gain a competitive edge over potential competitors.

•	 To undertake the project development and 
implementation of Transportation and Other 
Infrastructure Projects.

•	 To evolve as a Transportation and Other 
Infrastructure Company committed to sustainable 
development and environment friendly execution of 
Transportation and Other Infrastructure Projects.

•	 To mobilize financial resources for project 
implementation as per project schedule.

•	 To encourage public private participation in 
Transportation and Other Infrastructure Projects in 
India and abroad.

•	 Thus, to contribute significantly in Transportation 
and Other Infrastructure so as to minimize General 
Transportation & other Costs of the Economy as well 
as to optimize the Capital and other resources for 
faster GDP growth

Strengths

•	 HSRCISL has developed expertise in execution and 
implementation all stages of project development 
- from concept to commissioning – including 
feasibility/bankability studies, DPR (detailed project 
report), financing/structuring of project specific 
SPVs, tendering, project supervision, commissioning 
etc.

•	 HSRCISL has acquired experience of working with 
multiple study teams consisting of international 
experts involved in conducting Feasibility studies 
of various High Speed Rail corridors of Diamond 
Quadrilateral

•	 HSRCISL has adequate capability and monitoring 
mechanism to enter into Private Public Partnership 
(PPP) models for implementation and financing of 
technology driven innovative Transportation & other 
Infrastructure projects.

•	 HSRCISL has adequate the requisite skills and 
experience to implement projects following the 
procedure laid down by ADB/Word Bank/other 
International bodies including resettlement and 
rehabilitation of Project Affected Persons and 
implementation of socio-economic safeguards for 
them.

•	 HSRCISL has a sound and robust financial 
management system, which allows for effective 
monitoring and control of expenditure. 

Weaknesses

•	 The human resource of HSRCISL is limited and is 
dependent on the holding company (RVNL) for 
manpower support as per project requirements.

•	 Transportation Infrastructure projects are highly 
capital intensive with long gestation period. As 

						      For and on behalf of Board of Directors

	 Sd/-	 Sd/-
	 (Rajesh Prasad)	 (Sanjeeb Kumar)
Place: Delhi	 Director	 Director
Date: 29.08.2023	 (DIN: 08585975)	 (DIN: 03383641)
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of now, HSRCISL doesn’t have the provision to 
raise private equity. Hence, such projects may be 
dependent on availability of suitable financing and/
or funding by the holding company. 

Opportunities 

•	 Transportation Infrastructure is an emerging domain 
and position of HSRCISL is unique.

•	 Transportation & other Infrastructure projects are 
priority projects for respective Governments and 
HSRCISL is an emerging & potential name in this 
domain.

•	 After Successful commissioning of PMC Contracts, 
HSRCISL has gained expertise and capability 
for Metro & Rail projects, which will be helpful in 
capturing new opportunities. 

Threats

•	 The dependency for experienced of technical 
manpower over RVNL and other Railway bodies may 
put little constraints in timely execution of projects.

•	 Availability of adequate funds is a critical requirement 
for implementation of any project. As HSRCISL is a 
growing entity, the time schedule of projected funds 
inflow, may deviate a little bit and cause similar 
deviation in the project schedule.

•	 As infrastructure projects involve Land acquisition 
& other critical issues, any such criticality may affect 
the project cost and schedule.

Risks and Concerns

•	 Transportation Infrastructure projects are always 
highly capital intensive. 

•	 The implementation of Infrastructure projects 
is dependent on specific policy directives of the 
Government of India.

Internal Control Systems

HSRCIL has a robust and effective Internal Control 
& monitoring system. HSRCIL has an effective & 
comprehensive Internal Control & Monitoring System, 
which covers each segment of its operations.

Human Resources 

The Company has limited need-based personnel on 
its rolls. At present, the activities of the Company are 
managed by present strength with the support of 
RVNL personnel on need basis. HSRCISL, being a wholly 
owned subsidiary of RVNL, is also engaged in Business 
Development of RVNL.

Financial Performance

During the year, the “Revenue from Operations” is Rs. 
1657.39 Lakhs as compared to Rs. 1487.49 Lakhs in the 
previous year. “Revenue from Other Sources” is Rs. 217.79 
Lakhs from Rs. 97.80 Lakhs in the previous year.

Annexure-III

REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

1.	 Company’s Philosophy on Corporate Governance

	 Initiatives are being taken to implement Corporate Governance principles and measures as contained in the 
Guidelines on Corporate Governance for Central Public Sector Enterprises May 2010 issued by the Department of 
Public Enterprises.

2.	 Incorporation 

	 The Company was incorporated on 25th July, 2012 as a wholly owned Subsidiary of RVNL Ltd. with an Authorized 
Share Capital of Rs. 500 Lakhs and paid-up share capital of Rs.10.74 Lakhs. In FY 2021-22, the authorized share 
capital of the Company was increase from Rs. 500 Lakhs to Rs. 5000 Lakhs with the paid-up share capital of the 
Company was increased from Rs.10.74 Lakhs to Rs. 4500 Lakhs.  

	 Hence, during the year 2022-23, the authorized share capital of the Company is Rs. 5000 Lakhs with the paid-up 
share capital of the Company is Rs. 4500 Lakhs. 

	 The Holding Company, RVNL, holds the entire paid-up share capital of the Company.

3.	 Board of Directors

	 Present strength of the Board of Directors is five comprising of part-time directors including part-time chairman-
nominated by the holding company.

	 The details of directors as on the date of this report are given below:

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
(As on the date of this Report)

S. 
No.

Name
Category of 
Directors Whole 
Time / Part Time

Directorships/ 
Chairmanships 
held in Public 
companies 
excluding HSRC*

Total No. of Committee 
Membership** held   

(including HSRC)

As Chairman
As Member 
other than 
Chairman

1. Mr. Pradeep Gaur 
(DIN:07243986)  
(w.e.f 10.09.2018)

Part -time 
Chairman 

1  
[RVNL]

- -

2. Mr. Vinay Singh  
(DIN: 03324677)  
(w.e.f. 12.09.2019)

Part -time Director 1  
[RVNL]

- -

3. Mr. Rajesh Prasad  
(DIN: 08585975)  
(w.e.f. 03.03.2020)

Part -time Director 1  
[RVNL]

- 2

4. Mr. Sanjeeb Kumar  
(DIN: 03383641)  
w.e.f. 10.07.2020

Part -time Director 1  
[RVNL]

- 1

5. Mrs. Anupam Ban  
(DIN: 07797026)  
w.e.f. 13.02.2023

Part -time Director 1  
[RVNL]

- -

	 * Does not include Directorship in Private Companies, Section 8 Companies and Foreign Companies.

	 **Does not include Chairmanship / Membership in the Board of Committees other than the Audit Committee and Shareholders’/Grievance 
Committees.

	 Note: 

	 Full names of companies referred:

	 RVNL- Rail Vikas Nigam Limited
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3.1	 Board Meetings, Annual General Meeting, and attendance during the financial year 2022-23.

	 The Board of Directors met 5 times during the financial year 2022-23 to discuss the activities of the Company. 
Details of attendance of the Directors during the year 2022-23 are given below: -

S. 
No.

Name of Directors

Board Meetings held on-

01.06.2022

05.08.2022

26.10.2022

24.01.2023

24.02.2023

Attendance at 
AGM 

Held during 
tenure

Attended

1. Mr. Pradeep Gaur  
(DIN:07243986)  
(w.e.f 10.09.2018)

5 5 Yes

2. Mr. Vinay Singh  
(DIN: 03324677)  
(w.e.f. 12.09.2019)

5 5 Yes

3. Mr. Rajesh Prasad  
(DIN: 08585975)  
(w.e.f. 03.03.2020)

5 5 Yes

4. Mr. Sanjeeb Kumar  
(DIN: 03383641)  
w.e.f. 10.07.2020

5 5 Yes

5. Mr. Ajay Kumar  
(DIN: 08249293)  
(from 23.09.2020 upto 31.01.2023)

4 3 Yes 

6. Mrs. Anupam Ban  
(DIN: 07797026)  
w.e.f. 13.02.2023

1 1 NA

4.	 Remuneration of Directors

	 No sitting fee is paid to the part – time Directors.

5.	 Code of Conduct

	 All Directors of the company are whole-time Directors of the holding Company, RVNL. They have been following 
the Code of Conduct laid down by RVNL.

6.	 Committees of the Board of Directors

	 Audit committee, Remuneration committee, CSR committee etc. will be constituted as and when the need arises.

7.	 Annual General Meeting

	 The Company will hold its 11th Annual General meeting in accordance with the provisions of section 96 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 & General circular No. 10/2022 dated 28th December 2022 read with General Circular No. 
02/2022 dated 5th May 2022 issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA).

	 The details relating to date, time and venue of the last three Annual General Meetings of the Company with details 
of Special resolution passed are placed below:

Year AGM Date Time Venue Special Resolution Passed

2021-22 10th 28.09.2022 1130 hrs Room No. 260, conference 
Room, First Floor, August Kranti 
Bhawan, BhikajiCama Place, 
R.K.Puram, New Delhi-110066

None

2020-21 9th 15.11.2021 1730 hrs Room No. 260, conference 
Room, First Floor, August Kranti 
Bhawan, BhikajiCama Place, 
R.K.Puram, New Delhi-110066

None

2019-20 8th 23.09.2020 1530 hrs Room No. 260, conference 
Room, First Floor, August Kranti 
Bhawan, Bhikaji Cama Place, 
R.K.Puram, New Delhi-110066

Four Special Resolution as under: 

1.	 To change the name of the 
Company & Alteration of Name 
Clause of Memorandum of 
Association (MOA).

2.	 Alteration of Articles of Association 
(AOA) pursuant to change of 
Name of the Company

3.	 Adoption of New set of 
Memorandum of Association 
(MOA) as per Companies Act, 2013

4.	 Adoption of New set of Articles 
of Association (AOA) as per 
Companies Act, 2013

8.	 Means of Communication

	 The Annual Report of the Company including the audited financial statements for the year 2022-23 containing 
inter-alia Directors’ Report, Report on Corporate Governance of HSRC are available on the website of the Company 
www.hsrc.in and at the Registered Office of the company.

	 Annual General Meeting of the Current Year

	 Date: Tuesday, 26th September, 2023
	 Time: 1130 Hours
	 Venue: Registered Office of the Company i.e., Conference Hall, First Floor, August Kranti Bhawan, Bhikaji Cama 

Place, R.K. Puram, New Delhi-110066 

	 •	 Category Wise Shareholding Pattern (As on the date of this report)

Category
No. of Shares held 
in physical form 

(Rs.10/- each)
% of Shares Held

Promoters  (Rail Vikas Nigam Limited and its six Nominees) 45000000 100%
Total 45000000 100%

	 •	 Address for Correspondence:

		  The address of registered office of the company is:
		  HSRC Infra Services Limited 
		  (Formerly known as High Speed Rail Corporation of India Limited)
		  RVNL Corporate Office, 
		  Room No. 260, 1st Floor, August Kranti Bhawan, 
		  Bhikaji Cama Place, New Delhi - 110066 
		  Contact. No.: 011-26738105

		  Email: info@hsrc.in
		  Website: www.hsrc.in
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Independent Auditor’s Report

TO THE MEMBERS OF HSRC INFRA SERVICES LIMITED 
(Formerly known as "HIGH SPEED RAIL CORPORATION 
OF INDIA LIMITED”

Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements 
of HSRC Infra Services Limited (“the Company”), which 
comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023, 
the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other 
Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes 
in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year 
ended on that date, and a summary of the significant 
accounting policies and other explanatory information 
(hereinafter referred to as “the financial statements”). 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and 
according to the explanations given to us,  the aforesaid  
financial statements give the information required by the 
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required 
and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian 
Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of 
the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting 
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other 
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the 
state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2023, the 
profit and total comprehensive profit, changes in equity 
and its cash flows for the year ended on that date. 

Basis Opinion 

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in 
accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified 
under section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities 
under those Standards are further described in the 
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial 
Statements section of our report. We are independent 
of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics 
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India 
(ICAI) together with the independence requirements that 
are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under 
the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, 
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in 
accordance with these requirements and the ICAI’s Code 
of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have 
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our audit opinion on the financial statements. 

Information Other than the Financial 
Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon 

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for 
the preparation of the other information. The other 
information comprises the information included in 
the Management Discussion and Analysis, Board’s 
Report including Annexures to Board’s Report, Business 

Responsibility Report, Corporate Governance and 
Shareholder’s Information, but does not include the 
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. 
The above report is expected to be made available to us 
after the date of this auditor's report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover 
the other information and we do not express any form of 
assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, 
our responsibility is to read the other information 
identified above when it becomes available and, in doing 
so, consider whether the other information is materially 
inconsistent with the financial statements or our 
knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears 
to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude 
that there is a material misstatement of this other 
information, we are required to report that fact. We have 
nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s Responsibilities for the 
Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for 
the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with 
respect to the preparation of these financial statements 
that give a true and fair view of the financial position, 
financial performance, total comprehensive income, 
changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in 
accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting 
principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility 
also includes maintenance of adequate accounting 
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act 
for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for 
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; 
selection and application of appropriate accounting 
policies; making judgments and estimates that are 
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation 
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, 
that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy 
and completeness of the accounting records, relevant 
to the preparation and presentation of the  financial 
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management 
is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to 
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, 
matters related to going concern and using the going 
concern basis of accounting unless management either 
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, 
or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the 
Company’s financial reporting process. 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the 
Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the financial statements as a whole are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, 
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. 
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is 
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance 
with SAs will always detect a material misstatement 
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or 
error and are considered material if, individually or in 
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to 
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the 
basis of these financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise 
professional judgment and maintain professional 
scepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

•	 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement 
of the financial statements, whether due to fraud 
or error, design and perform audit procedures 
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence 
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material 
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for 
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, 
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or 
the override of internal control. 

•	 Obtain an understanding of internal financial 
controls relevant to the audit in order to design 
audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, 
we are also responsible for expressing our opinion 
on whether the Company has adequate internal 
financial controls system in place and the operating 
effectiveness of such controls. 

•	 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies 
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates 
and related disclosures made by management. 

•	 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s 
use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based 
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material 
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions 
that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s 
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude 
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to 
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related 
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such 
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our 
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained 
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future 
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease 
to continue as a going concern. 

•	 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and 
content of the financial statements, including the 

disclosures, and whether the financial statements 
represent the underlying transactions and events in 
a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the 
financial statements that, individually or in aggregate, 
makes it probable that the economic decisions of 
a reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial 
statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative 
materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the 
scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of 
our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified 
misstatements in the financial statements. 

We communicate with those charged with governance 
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope 
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, 
including any significant deficiencies in internal control 
that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with 
a statement that we have complied with relevant 
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to 
communicate with them all relationships and other 
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our 
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory 
Requirements

1.	� As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our 
audit we report that: 

	 a) 	 We have sought and obtained all the information 
and explanations which to the best of our 
knowledge and belief were necessary for the 
purposes of our audit. 

	 b) 	 In our opinion, proper books of account as required 
by law have been kept by the Company so far as it 
appears from our examination of those books. 

	 c) 	 The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and 
Loss including Other Comprehensive Income, 
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement 
of Cash Flow dealt with by this Report are in 
agreement with the relevant books of account. 

	 d) 	 In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements 
comply with the Ind AS specified under Section 
133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies 
(Accounts) Rules, 2014. 

	 e) 	 Company is a subsidiary of the government 
company hence of Section 164 (2) of the 
Companies Act 2013 is not applicable in term of 
exemption given by notification no. G.S.R. 463(E) 
dated June 5, 2015. 

	 f) 	 With respect to the adequacy of the internal 
financial controls over financial reporting of 
the Company and the operating effectiveness 
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of such controls, refer to our separate Report 
in “Annexure A”. Our report expresses an 
unmodified opinion on the adequacy and 
operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal 
financial controls over financial reporting. 

	 g) 	 As per Notification number G.S.R.463(E) dated 
5th June, 2015 issued by Ministry of Corporate 
Affairs, section 197 of the Act regarding 
remuneration to directors is not applicable 
to the Company, since it is a Government 
Company. 

	 h) 	 With respect to the other matters to be included 
in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 
2014, as amended in our opinion and to the 
best of our information and according to the 
explanations given to us: 

		  i. 	 The company does not have any pending 
litigation which would impact its financial 
position.

		  ii. 	 There is no such case for which the Company 
has made provision, as required under the 
applicable law or accounting standards, for 
material foreseeable losses, if any, on long 
term contracts including derivative contracts.

		  iii. 	 There were no amounts which were required 
to be transferred to the Investor Education 
and Protection Fund by the Company.

		  iv. 	 (a) 	 The management has represented 
that, to the best of its knowledge and 
belief, other than as disclosed in the 
notes to the accounts, no funds have 
been advanced or loaned or invested 
(either from borrowed funds or share 
premium or any other sources or kind 
of funds) by the company to or in any 
other persons or entities, including 
foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with 
the understanding, whether recorded 
in writing or otherwise, that the 
intermediary shall, whether, directly or 
indirectly lend or invest in other persons 
or entities identified in any manner 
whatsoever by or on behalf of the 
Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or 
provide any guarantee, security or the like 
on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

			   (b) 	 The management has represented, 
that, to the best of its knowledge and 
belief, other than as disclosed in the 
notes to the accounts, no funds have 
been received by the Company from 
any persons or entities, including foreign 
entities (“Funding Parties”), with the 

understanding, whether recorded in 
writing or otherwise, that the Company 
shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend 
or invest in other persons or entities 
identified in any manner whatsoever 
by or on behalf of the Funding Party 
(“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any 
guarantee, security or the like on behalf 
of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and 

			   (c) 	 Based on such audit procedures that 
we have considered reasonable and 
appropriate in the circumstances, 
nothing has come to our notice that 
has caused us to believe that the 
representations under sub-clause (i) 
and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under 
(a) and (b) above, contain any material 
misstatement.

		  v. 	 The Company has not declared or paid any 
dividend during the year. 	  

		  vi. 	 Proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies 
(Accounts) Rules, 2014 for maintaining books 
of accounting software which has a feature 
of recording audit trail (edit log) facility is 
applicable to the Company with effects 
from April 1, 2023, and accordingly, reporting 
under Rule 11(g) of Companies (Audit and 
Auditors) Rules, 2014 is not applicable for the 
financial year ended 31st March 2023.	  

2. 	 As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) 
Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central 
Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we 
give in “Annexure B” a statement on the matters 
specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order. 

3. 	 Based on the verification of books of account of 
the Company and according to information and 
explanations given to us, we give in the “Annexure-C”, 
a report on the directions and sub-directions, issued 
by the Comptroller and Auditors General of India in 
terms of section 143 (5) of the Act

FOR GUPTA NAYAR & CO.
Chartered Accountants
(Firm Reg. No. 008376N)

Sd/-
Satyabhama Gupta
(Partner)
M. No. 073295

Place: Delhi
Date: 29.08.2023
UDIN: 23073295BGYQKK3223

Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report

(Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report 
to the Members of HSRC INFRA SERVICES LIMITED (Formerly known as “HIGH SPEED RAIL CORPORATION OF 
INDIA LIMITED of even date) 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over 
Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 
of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) 

We have audited the internal financial controls over 
financial reporting of HSRC Infra Services Limited 
(Formerly Known as "High Speed Rail Corporation of 
India Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2023 in 
conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of 
the Company for the year ended on that date. 

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial 
Controls 

The Board of Directors of the Company is responsible for 
establishing and maintaining internal financial controls 
based on the internal control over financial reporting 
criteria established by the Company considering the 
essential components of internal control stated in the 
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over 
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the 
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate 
internal financial controls that were operating effectively 
for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its 
business, including adherence to respective company’s 
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention 
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and 
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely 
preparation of reliable financial information, as required 
under the Companies Act, 2013. 

Auditor’s Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the 
internal financial controls over financial reporting of 
the Company based on our audit. We conducted our 
audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit 
of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 
(the “Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing 
prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 
2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal 
financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance 
Note require that we comply with ethical requirements 
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether adequate internal financial 
controls over financial reporting was established and 
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all 
material respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit 
evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial 
controls system over financial reporting and their 
operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial 
controls over financial reporting included obtaining 
an understanding of internal financial controls over 
financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material 
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design 
and operating effectiveness of internal control based 
on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend 
on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment 
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion on the internal financial controls system over 
financial reporting of the Company. 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over 
Financial Reporting 

A company’s internal financial control over financial 
reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable 
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting 
and the preparation of financial statements for external 
purposes in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles. A company’s internal financial 
control over financial reporting includes those policies 
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of 
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly 
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets 
of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance 
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit 
preparation of financial statements in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting principles, and that 
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made 
only in accordance with authorisations of management 
and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable 
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection 
of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the 
company’s assets that could have a material effect on the 
financial statements. 

Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over 
Financial Reporting 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial 
controls over financial reporting, including the possibility 
of collusion or improper management override of 
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controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud 
may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any 
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial 
reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that 
the internal financial control over financial reporting may 
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, 
or that the degree of compliance with the policies or 
procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, to the best of our information and 
according to the explanations given to us, the Company 
has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial 
controls system over financial reporting and such internal 
financial controls over financial reporting were operating 
effectively as at March 31, 2023, based on the internal 
control over financial reporting criteria established by 

the Company considering the essential components of 
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit 
of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 

FOR GUPTA NAYAR & CO.
Chartered Accountants
(Firm Reg. No. 008376N)

Sd/-
Satyabhama Gupta
(Partner)
M. No. 073295

Place: Delhi
Date: 29.08.2023
UDIN: 23073295BGYQKK3223

Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report

Referred to in Paragraph 2 under the heading ‘Report on Other Legal & Regulatory Requirements’ of our Report 
of even date to the members of HSRC INFRA SERVICES LIMITED (Formerly known as “High Speed Rail Corporation 
of India Limited”) on the Financial Statement for the year ended March 31, 2023:

i)	 (a) 	 (A) 	The company has maintained proper 
records showing full particulars, including 
quantitative details and situation of Property, 
Plant and Equipment;

		  (B) As per the information and explanation 
provided by the management and on 
examination of books of accounts and 
records, the company does not have 
intangible assets. 

	 (b) 	 As per the information and explanation provided 
by the management, the Property, Plant and 
Equipment have been physically verified by the 
management in a phased manner, which in our 
opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size 
of the company and nature of its business and no 
discrepancies were noticed on such verification. 

	 (c)	 As per the information and explanation provided 
by the management and on examination of books 
of accounts and records, there is no immovable 
property as at the balance sheet date.  

	 (d) 	 As per the information and explanation provided 
by the management and on examination of 
books of accounts and records, the company has 
not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment 
(including Right of Use Assets) or intangible 
assets during the year. Hence, reporting under 
Para 3(i)(d) is not applicable. 

	 (e) 	 As per the information and explanation provided 
by the management and on examination of 
books of accounts and records, no proceedings 
have been initiated or are pending against the 
company for holding any benami property under 
the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 
(45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder. Hence, 
reporting under Para 3(i)(e) is not applicable. 

ii)	 (a) 	 As explained by the management of the company, 
there is no inventory held by the company as on 
balance sheet date.

	 (b) The company has not been granted working 
capital limits in excess of five crores rupees, in 
aggregate, during the year based on security of 
current assets. Hence, reporting under Para 3(ii)
(b) is not applicable. 

iii)	 The company has not made any investment in, 
provided any guarantee or security or granted any 
loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured 
or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability 
Partnerships or any other parties covered under 
the section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013. Hence, 
reporting under para 3(iii)(a) to 3(iii)(f) is not applicable. 

iv)	 In our opinion and according to the information and 
explanations given to us, the company has complied 
with the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 in respect of loans, investments, 
guarantees and security. 

v)	 The company has not accepted any deposits from 
public or amounts which are deemed to be deposits 
and hence the directives issued by the Reserve Bank 
of India and the provisions of Sections 73 to 76 or any 
other relevant provisions of the Act and the Companies 
(Acceptance of Deposit) Rules, 2015 about the deposits 
accepted from the public are not applicable. 

vi)	 In our opinion and according to the information and 
explanations given to us, maintenance of cost records 
has not been specified by the Central Government under 
sub section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013.

vii)	 (a) As per the information and explanations given to 
us and based on our examination of the books 
of accounts, and records, the Company has 
been generally regular in depositing undisputed 
statutory dues including Goods and Service 
Tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance, 
income tax, sales tax, service tax, duty of customs, 
duty of excise, value added tax, cess and any other 
statutory dues to the appropriate authorities 
except in few cases where the TDS and GST is 
deposited late. 

		  According to the information and explanations 
given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in 
respect of the above were in arrears as at March 
31, 2023 for a period of more than six months 
from the date on when they become payable 
except of GST payable amounting of Rs. 17.91 lac, 
interest thereon amounting of Rs.1.17 lacs and 
professional tax amounting of Rs.0.05 lacs. 

	 (b) 	 According to the information and explanations 
given to us and as per books and records examined 
by us, the GST liability of ₹ 17.91 Lacs is due for more 
than 6 months. There are no other material dues 
of statutory dues referred to in sub clause (a).

viii)	�As per the information and explanations given to 
us and based on our examination of the books of 
accounts, and records there were no transactions 
relating to previously unrecorded income that have 
been surrendered or disclosed as income during the 
year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax 
Act, 1961 (43 of 1961).

ix)	 (a) 	 As per the information and explanation provided 
by the management and examination of books 
of accounts and records, the company does not 
have any loans or borrowings from a financial 
institution, bank, Government during the year. 
The company has not issued any debentures. 
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Hence, reporting under Para 3(ix)(a) to 3(ix)(f) is 
not applicable.

x)	 (a) 	 Based upon the audit procedures performed 
and information and explanations given by 
the management, the company has not raised 
money by way of initial public offer or further 
public offer (including debt instruments) during 
the year. Hence, reporting under Para 3(x)(a) is 
not applicable.

	 (b) 	 Based upon the audit procedures performed 
and information and explanations given by the 
management, the company has not made any 
preferential allotment or private placement of 
shares or convertible debentures (fully, partially 
or optionally convertible) during the year. 

		  Hence the requirements of section 42 and section 
62 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable.

xi)	 (a) 	 Based upon the audit procedures performed 
and information and explanations given by the 
management, we report that no fraud by the Company 
or on the Company by its officers or employees has 
been noticed or reported during the year. 

	 (b) 	 No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of 
the Companies Act, 2013 has been filed in Form 
ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies 
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central 
Government during the year and upto the date of 
this report. 

	 (c) 	 There are no whistle blower complaints received 
by the company during the year.

xii)	 The company is not a Nidhi Company. Hence, 
reporting under Para 3(xii)(a) to 3(xii)(c) is not 
applicable. 

xiii)	Based upon the audit procedures performed 
and information and explanations given by the 
management, all the transactions with the related 
parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of 
Companies Act, 2013 where applicable and the details 
have been disclosed in the financial statements as 
required by the applicable accounting standards. 

xiv)	 In our opinion and based on our examination, the 
company does not have an internal audit system and 
is not required to have an internal audit system as per 
the provision of Companies Act, 2013 hence subclause 
a and b of clause (xiv) is not commented upon.

xv)	 Based upon the audit procedures performed 
and information and explanations given by the 
management, the company has not entered into 
any non-cash transactions with directors or persons 
connected with him. Accordingly, the provisions of 
clause 3 (xv) of the Order are not applicable to the 
Company and hence not commented upon.

xvi)	(a) 	 In our opinion, the company is not required to 
be registered under section 45 IA of the Reserve 
Bank of India, 1934. Hence, reporting under Para 
3(xvi)(a), (b) and (c) is not applicable. 

	 (b) In our opinion, there is no core investment 
company within the Group (as defined in the 
Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) 
Directions, 2016) and accordingly reporting 
under Para 3(xvi)(d) is not applicable.  

xvii)	Based upon the audit procedures performed 
and information and explanations given by the 
management, the company has not incurred 
cash losses in the current financial year and in the 
immediately preceding financial year.

xviii)There has been no resignation of the statutory 
auditors during the year.

xix)	On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and 
expected dates of realisation of financial assets and 
payment of financial liabilities, other information 
accompanying the financial statements, knowledge 
of the Board of Directors and management plan, 
and based on our examination of the evidence 
supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our 
attention, which causes us to believe that any material 
uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report 
that company is not capable of meeting its liabilities 
existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they 
fall due within a period of one year from the balance 
sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an 
assurance as to the future viability of the company

	 We further state that our reporting is based on 
the facts up to the date of the audit report and we 
neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all 
liabilities falling due within a period of one year from 
the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the 
company as and when they fall due.

xx)	 (a) The provisions of Section 135 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 are not applicable to the company. 
Hence, reporting under Para 3(xx)(a) and (b) is 
not applicable.

xxi)	Since the company is not having any subsidiary, 
associate or joint venture during the financial 
year, the management is not required to prepare 
Consolidated Financial Statements. Hence, reporting 
under Para 3(xxi) is not applicable. 

FOR GUPTA NAYAR & CO.
Chartered Accountants
(Firm Reg. No. 008376N)

Sd/-
Satyabhama Gupta
(Partner)
M. No. 073295

Place: Delhi
Date: 29.08.2023
UDIN: 23073295BGYQKK3223

Annexure C to the Independent Auditor’s Report-31st MARCH, 2023

(Referred to in our report of even date)

Annexure C referred to in paragraph (3) under the heading ‘Report on Other Legal & Regulatory Requirement’ of our 
report of even date on the financial statements of HSRC Infra Services Limited (Formerly Known As "High Speed 
Rail Corporation Of India Limited of even date) for the year ended March 31st March, 2023. 

1.	 Whether the Company has system in place to 
process all the accounting transaction through  IT 
System? . If yes, the implications of the processing 
of the accounting transactions outside IT system on 
the integrity of the accounts alongwith the financial 
implications, if any, may be stated.

The company is having the system in place to process all 
accounting transaction through Tally software system. 
In our knowledge and as explained by the company 
there is no accounting transaction outside IT system is 
being maintained by the company.

2.	 Whether there is any restructuring of an existing 
loan or cases of waiver/write off of debts/loans/
interest etc. made by a lender to the company due 
to the company’s inability to repay the loan? If yes, 
the financial impact may be stated. Whether such 
cases are properly accounted for? (In case, lender is 
a Government company, then this direction is also 
applicable for statutory auditor of Lender Company).

As explained by the company there is no case of 
restructuring of the existing loan or cases of waiver/write 
off of debts/loans/interest etc. made by a lender to the 
company due to the company’s inability to repay the 
loan during the year 3.77

3.	 Whether funds (grants/subsidy etc.) received/
receivable for specific schemes from Central/State 
Government or its agencies were properly accounted 
for/utilized as per its term and conditions? List the 
cases of deviation.

No funds (grants/subsidy etc.) received/receivable for 
specific schemes from Central/State Government or its 
agencies during the period of audit i.e. 2022-23.

Therefore, this clause is not applicable.

FOR GUPTA NAYAR & CO.
Chartered Accountants
(Firm Reg. No. 008376N)

Sd/-
Satyabhama Gupta
(Partner)
M. No. 073295

Place: Delhi
Date: 29.08.2023
UDIN: 23073295BGYQKK3223
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Balance Sheet 
as at March 31, 2023

(J in Lakhs)

Particulars Note No. As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022

I. ASSETS
1 Non-current assets

(a) Property, Plant and equipment 3  16.48  10.26 
(b) Capital Work-in-Progress  -    -   
(c) Invetment property  -    -   
(d) Goodwill  -    -   
(e) Intangible Assets 3.1  0.48  -   
(f) Intangible assets under development  -    -   
(g) Financial Asset

(i) Investments  -    -   
(ii) Trade receivables  -    -   
(iii) Loans  -    -   

(h) Deferred Tax Asset(Net) 4  11.31  0.90 
(i) Other non current assets  -    -   
Total Non-Current Assets  28.27  11.16

2 Current assets
(a) Inventories  -    -   
(b)  Financial Assets

(i) Investments  -    -   
(ii) Trade Receivables 5  665.37  770.68 
(iii) Cash and cash equivalents 6  2,914.60  2,404.98 
(iv) Bank balances other than(iii) above"  -    -   
(v) Loans  -    -   
(vi) Other financial asset 7  1,535.14  1,461.30 

(c) Current Tax Assets (Net) 16  46.28  98.31 
(d) Other current assets 8  3.49  8.70 
Total Current Assets  5,164.88  4,743.97
Total Assets  5,193.15  4,755.14

II. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1 Equity

(a) Equity Share Capital 9  4,500.00  4,500.00 
(b) Other Equity 10 501.56  171.18 
Total Equity  5,001.56  4,671.18
Liabilities

2 Non-current Liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities

 (i)	 Borrowings
 	 (a)	 Lease liabilities  -    -   
(ii)	 Trade Payable
	 (a) 	�	 total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises  -    -   
	 (b) 	� total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises 

and small enterprises
 -    -   

(iii) 		 Other financial liabilities  -    -   
(b) Provisions 11  13.21  4.07 
(c) Deferred Tax Liabilities(Net) 4  -   
(d) Other non-current liabilities
Total Non-current Liabilities  13.21  4.07

3 Current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities

(i) 		 Borrowings
 	 (a)	 Lease liabilities  -    -   
(i) 	 Trade Payable
	 (a) 	�	 total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 12  92.07  55.93 
	 (b) 	� total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises 

and small enterprises
 -    -   

(ii) 	 Other financial liabilities 13  22.05  15.77 
(b) Other current liabilities 14  32.11  7.90 
(c) Provisions 15  32.15  0.29 
(d) Current Tax Liabilities(Net) 16  -    -   
Total current Liabilities  178.38  79.89
Total Equity and Liabilities  5,193.14  4,755.14

III. See accompanying notes to the financial statements (1-35)

As per our Report of even date attached For and on behalf of Board of Directors

For Gupta Nayar & Co., Sd/- Sd/-
Chartered Accountants Sanjeeb Kumar Rajesh Prasad
FRN : 008376N Director 

DIN: 03383641
Director 
DIN:08585975

Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
CA Satyabhama Gupta Mudit Mittal Kalpana Dubey 
Partner Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary 
M. No. 073295 M. No. F7396 

Place : Delhi
Date: 29.08.2023

Statement of Profit And Loss 
for the year ended 31 March, 2023

As per our Report of even date attached For and on behalf of Board of Directors

For Gupta Nayar & Co., Sd/- Sd/-
Chartered Accountants Sanjeeb Kumar Rajesh Prasad
FRN : 008376N Director 

DIN: 03383641
Director 
DIN:08585975

Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
CA Satyabhama Gupta Mudit Mittal Kalpana Dubey 
Partner Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary 
M. No. 073295 M. No. F7396 

Place : Delhi
Date: 29.08.2023

(J in Lakhs)

Particulars Note 
No.

For the year 
ended 

31 March 2023

For the year 
ended 

31 March 2022 

I. Revenue from operations 17  1,657.39  1,487.49 
Other income 18  217.79  97.80 
Total Income  1,875.18  1,585.29 

II. Expenses:
Expenses on operations 19  903.73  1,164.13 
Employee Benefit Expenses 20  381.24  133.23 
Finance costs 21  -    -   
Depreciation and amortization expenses 22  5.33  1.32 
Other expenses 23  142.04  36.49 
Total Expenses  1,432.33  1,335.17 

III Profit/(Loss) Before exceptional items and Tax (I-II)  442.83  250.12 
IV Exceptional Items
V Profit/(Loss) before tax (III-IV)  442.83  250.12 
VI Tax expense:

(1) 	 Current tax
   	 - 	 For the year 26  122.29  60.41 
   	 - 	 For earlier years (net) 26  0.59  -   
(2) Deferred tax (net) 4  (10.42)  (0.90)
Total Tax Expense (VI)  112.46  59.51 

VII Profit/(loss) for the period from continuing operation (V-VI)  330.37  190.61 
VIII Profit/(loss) from discontinued operations
IX Tax Expense of discontinued operations
X Profit/(loss) from discontinued operations (after tax) (VIII-IX)
XI Profit/(loss) for the period (VII+X)  330.37  190.61 
XII Other Comprehensive Income

A. 	 (i) 	 Items that will not be reclassified to profit and loss 0.02  -   
	 (ii) �	� Income Tax relating to Items that will not be 

reclassified to profit and loss
 (0.01)  -   

B. 	 (i) 	 Items that will be reclassified to profit and loss  -    -   
	 (ii) 	� Income Tax relating to Items that will be reclassified 

to profit and loss
 -    -   

XIII Total Comprehensive Income for the period (XI +XII) 
(Comprehensive profit and other comprehensive income 
for the period)

 330.38  190.61 

XIV Earnings Per Equity Share:
(For Continuing Operation)
(1) Basic (Face Value H 10 Per Share) (In H) 24  0.73  0.99 
(2) Diluted (Face Value H 10 Per Share) (In H) 24  0.73  0.76 
See accompanying notes to the financial statements (1-35)
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Statement of Cash Flows 
for the period ended on 31 March, 2023

(J in Lakhs)

Particulars
For the year 

ended 
31 March 2023

For the year 
ended 

31 March 2022

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net Profit before taxation  442.83  250.12 
Adjustment for :
Depreciation, amortization and impairment  5.33  1.32 
Interest Income  (217.79)  (97.80)
Other comprehensive income 0.02  -   
Operating Profit before working capital changes (1)  230.39  153.64 
Adjustment for :
Decrease / (Increase) in Trade Receivables 
/ Loans & Advances

 105.31  (760.69)

Decrease / (Increase) in Other Financial Assets  (1.40)  (1,400.88)
(Decrease) / Increase in Other Financial Liabilities  6.28  (36.06)
(Decrease) / Increase in Other Liabilities & Provisions  41.00  4.14 
(Decrease) / Increase in Trade Payable  36.14  (19.34)
(Decrease) / Increase in Other Current Liabilities  24.21  (153.60)
Decrease / (Increase) in Other Current Assets  5.22  (4.01)

(2)  216.76  (2,370.46)
Cash generated from operation (1+2)  447.15  (2,216.82)
Income Tax Paid (Net of refunds)  (70.85)  (148.54)
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES  (A)  376.30  (2,365.36)
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of Fixed Assets including Capital WIP  (12.03)  (11.58)
Increase in deposits having original maturity of  more than 
three months and other bank balances

 (70.00)  -   

Interest Received  215.35  37.38 
NET CASH FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES  (B)  133.32  25.80 
CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Share Application Money pending received  -    4,239.26 
NET CASH FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES  (C)  -    4,239.26 
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH & CASH EQUIVALENT  (A+B+C)  509.62  1,899.82 
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT (OPENING) (D)  2,404.98 505.16
Cash Balances  -    -   
Balance with Banks  23.18  41.27 
Fixed Deposits  2,381.50  451.00 
Cheque in transit  -    12.89 
Imprest Account  0.30  -   
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT (CLOSING) (E)  2,914.60  2,404.98 
Cash Balances  -    -   
Balance in Banks  2,213.63  23.18 
Fixed Deposits  700.90  2,381.50 
Cheque in transit  -    -   
Imprest to Employees  0.07  0.30 
NET INCREASE IN CASH & CASH EQUIVALENT  (F - E)  509.62  1,899.82 

Statement of Cash Flows 
for the period ended on 31 March, 2023

Reconciliation of Liabilities arising from financing activities for the year ended on 31.03.2023
(J in Lakhs)

Particulars
Share 

Application 
Money (Nte 10.2)

Opening Balance At 1st April 2022  4,489.26 
Change Arising from cash flows 
   -	 Paid During the year 
   -	 Received during the year  -   
Non-Cash Changes
   - 	 Others  -   
Balance at 31st March, 2023  4,489.26 

Reconciliation of Liabilities arising from financing activities for the year ended on 31.03.2022
(J in Lakhs) 

Particulars
Share 

Application 
Money (Nte 10.2)

Opening Balance At 1st April 2021  250.00 
Cah Flows:- 
Change Arising from cash flows 
   -	 Paid During the year  -   
   -	 Received during the year  4,239.26 
Non-Cash Changes
   - 	 Others  -   
Balance at 31st March, 2022  4,489.26 

See accompanying notes to the financial statements (1-35)

Note: 1. The above statement of Cash Flows has been prepared under the “Indirect Method” as set out in the Indian 
Accounting Standard (Ind AS) - 7 on Statement of Cash Flows.

2. 	 Figures in brackets represent outflow of cash

As per our Report of even date attached For and on behalf of Board of Directors

For Gupta Nayar & Co., Sd/- Sd/-
Chartered Accountants Sanjeeb Kumar Rajesh Prasad
FRN : 008376N Director 

DIN: 03383641
Director 
DIN:08585975

Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
CA Satyabhama Gupta Mudit Mittal Kalpana Dubey 
Partner Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary 
M. No. 073295 M. No. F7396 

Place : Delhi
Date: 29.08.2023
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(J in Lakhs)

Particulars
Balance as 
at 1st April 

2022

Changes 
due to Prior 

Period Errors

Restated 
Balance as at 
1st April 2022

Changes in equity 
share capital 

during the year

 Issue of equity 
shares capital 

during the year

Balance as at 31st 
March 2023

Number of 
Share in Lakhs

 450.00  -    450.00  - 450.00

Amount  4,500.00  -    4,500.00  - 4500.00

2. As at 31st March, 2022

(J in Lakhs)

Particulars
Balance as 
at 1st April 

2021

Changes 
due to Prior 

Period Errors

Restated 
Balance as at 
1st April 2021

Changes in equity 
share capital 

during the year

 Issue of equity 
shares capital 

during the year

Balance as at 31st 
March 2022

Number of 
Share in Lakhs

1.07  -    1.07  -  448.93 450.00

Amount 10.74  -    10.74  -  4,489.26 4500.00

Statement of Changes in Equity 
for the year ended 31 March, 2023

A. 	 Equity share capital

1. 	 As at 31st March, 2023

B. 	 Other Equity

1. As at 31st March, 2023
(J in Lakhs)

Particulars

 Reserve & 
Surplus 

 Share 
Application 

Money Pending 
Allotment 

 

 Total 
 Retained 
Earnings 

Balance as at 1st April 2022  171.18  -    171.18 
Changes in accounting policy or prior period errors  -    -    -   
Restated Balance as at 1st April  2022  171.18  -    171.18 
Profit  (Loss) for the year  330.37  -    330.37 
Other Comprehensive Income for the year (net of income tax)  0.01  -    0.01 
Total Comprehensive Income for the year  330.38  330.38 
Share application money received during the period  -    -    -   
Share issued during the year  -    -    -   
Dividend Paid  -    -    -   
Share issue expenses  -    -   
Balance as at 31st March, 2023  501.56  -    501.56 

Statement of Changes in Equity 
for the year ended 31 March, 2023

(J in Lakhs)

Particulars

 Reserve & 
Surplus 

 Share 
Application 

Money 
Pending 

Allotment 

 Total 
 Retained 
Earnings 

Balance as at 1st April 2021  (19.21)  250.00  230.79 
Changes in accounting policy or prior period errors  -    -    -   
Restated Balance as at 1st April  2021  (19.21)  250.00  230.79 
Profit  (Loss) for the year  190.61  -    190.61 
Other Comprehensive Income for the year (net of income tax)  -    -    -   
Total Comprehensive Income for the year  190.61  190.61 
Share application money received during the period  -    4,239.26  4,239.26 
Share issued during the year  -    (4,489.26)  (4,489.26)
Dividend Paid  -    -    -   
Share issue expenses  (0.22)  (0.22)
Balance as at 31st March, 2022  171.18  -    171.18 

See accompanying notes to the financial statements (1-35)

As per our Report of even date attached For and on behalf of Board of Directors

For Gupta Nayar & Co., Sd/- Sd/-
Chartered Accountants Sanjeeb Kumar Rajesh Prasad
FRN : 008376N Director 

DIN: 03383641
Director 
DIN:08585975

Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
CA Satyabhama Gupta Mudit Mittal Kalpana Dubey 
Partner Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary 
M. No. 073295 M. No. F7396 

Place : Delhi
Date: 29.08.2023

2. As at 31st March, 2022
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Notes forming Part of the Financial Statement 
ended 31st March, 2023

Notes forming Part of the Financial Statement 
ended 31st March, 2023

Notes- 1 & 2	

1. 	 General Information	

	 HSRC Infra Services Limited (Formerly known as High 
Speed  Rail Corporation of India Limited) is a public 
limited, CIN: U45204DL2012GOI239289 company 
domiciled and was incorporated in India under the 
Provisions of the Company Act, 1956 on July 25, 2012 
with the Object of carrying out Business related to 
Planning, designing, development, construction, 
manufacturing, assembling, fabricating, processing, 
installing, maintenance, operation, and financing of 
Railway Infrastructure and related logistic support 
systems, including rolling stock, of all types in India 
and abroad of High Speed Rail Projects and other rail 
based traffic, as may be approved by Government of 
India  or Rail Vikas Nigam limited  or any other such 
Competent Authority. The registered office of the 
company is located at 1st Floor August Kranti Bhawan, 
Bhikaji Cama Place, New Delhi- 110066, India.	

2.1 	 Basis of Preparation	

	 A)    Statement of Compliance	

		  The financial statements as at end for the period 
ended 31st March, 2023 have been prepared in 
accordance with Indian Accounting Standards 
(Ind-AS) notified under section 133 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 as companies (Indian 
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended 
from time to time. 	

	 B)    Basis of Measurement	

		  i.	 The financial statements have been 
prepared on a historical cost convention and 
on an accrual basis, except for the following 
items that have been measured at fair value 
as required by relevant Ind AS:

	  	 ii. 	 Certain financial assets and liabilities 
measured at fair value. Defined benefit 
Plan and other long term employee 
benefits”	

	 C)    Use of estimates and judgement	

		  Primary Estimates-

		  The preparation of financial statements in 
conformity with Ind AS requires management 
to make judgments, estimates and assumptions 
that affect the application of accounting policies 
and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, 
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at 
the date of financial statements and the reported 
amount of income and expenses. Examples of 
such estimates includes estimates of provision for 

doubtful debts, future obligations under employee 
retirement benefit plans and estimated useful life 
of property, plant and equipment.  Actual results 
may differ from these estimates.

		  Estimates and underlying assumptions are 
reviewed on a periodic basis. Future results 
could differ due to changes in these estimates 
and difference between the actual result and 
the estimates are recognised in the period 
in which the results are known/ materialize. 
All financial information presented in Indian 
rupees and all values are rounded to the nearest 
lakhs except where otherwise stated.	

	 D) 	 Cash flow statement	

		  Cash flows are reported using the indirect 
method, whereby profit / (loss) before tax is 
adjusted for the effects of transactions of non-
cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past 
or future cash receipts or payments. The cash 
flows from operating, investing and financing 
activities of the Company are segregated based 
on the available information.	

		  For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash 
and cash equivalents include cash in hand, cash 
at banks and demand deposits with banks, net of 
outstanding bank overdrafts that are repayable 
on demand are considered part of the Company’s 
cash management system.

	 E) 	 Functional and presentation currency	

		  Items included in the financial statements are 
measured using the currency of the primary 
economic environment in which the Company 
operates (Functional Currency). The financial 
statements are presented in Indian rupees, which 
is presentation currency of company.	

	 F) 	 Property, plant and equipment	

		  1-	 Property, plant and equipment are measured 
at cost less accumulated depreciation and 
impairment losses, if any	

			   Cost of asset includes the following	

			   i. 	 Cost directly attributable to the 
acquisition of the assets	

			   ii. 	 Present value of the estimated costs 
of dismantling & removing the items & 
restoring the site on which it is located if 
recognition criteria are met.	

		  2-    Cost of replacement, major inspection, repair 
of significant parts are capitalized if the 
recognition criteria are met.	

		  3-      An item of property, plant and equipment 
is derecognised upon disposal or when no 
future economic benefits are expected to arise 
from continued use of assets. Any gain or loss 
arising on disposal or retirement of an item of 
property, plant an equipment is determined 
as the difference between the sale proceeds 
and the carrying amount of the asset and is 
recognised in statement of profit or loss.

	 G) 	 Intangible Assets

		  Intangible assets are recognized when it is 
probable that the future economic benefits 
that are attributable to the asset will flow to 
the enterprise and the cost of the asset can 
be measured reliably. Intangible assets are 
stated at historical cost less accumulated 
amortization and impairment loss, if any. 
 
Intangible assets comprise of license fees, other 
implementation costs for system software and 
other application software acquired for in-house 
use. The costs are capitalized in the year in which 
the relevant software is implemented for use. The 
cost of an intangible asset comprises its purchase 
price, including any import duties and other 
taxes, and any directly attributable expenditure 
on making the asset ready for its intended use.

	 H) 	 Depreciation 	

		  (a) 	 Depreciation on Property, plant and 
Equipment is provided on Straight Line basis 
(SLM) over the useful life of the assets.	

		  (b)   Each part of an item of Property, Plant and 
Equipment is depreciated separately if the cost 
of part is significant in relation to the total cost 
of the item and useful life of that part is different 
from the useful life of remaining asset.

		  Estimated useful life of assets are  as specified 
in Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013.The 
estimated useful life of assets for current and 
comparative period of significant items of 
property plant and equipments for assets other 
than given to employees are as follows:

Particulars
Useful Life 

(years)

Computers 3

Furniture and Fixtures 10
Office Equipments 5

		�  The estimated useful life of assets for current 
and comparative period of significant items of 
property plant and equipments for assets  given 
to employees are as follows:

Particulars
Useful Life 

(years)

Mobile 2

Residence Furnishing 5
Tablet/Laptop 3

		  (c)  Depreciation methods, useful lives and 
residual values are reviewed at each 
reporting date, with the effect of change 
in estimate accounted for on a prospective 
basis.	

		  (d)  Residual value of Assets is considered as 5% 
of cost of assets	

	 I) 	 Provisions	

		  Provision is recognised when:

		  i) 	 The Company has a present obligation as a 
result of a past event,

		  ii) 	 A probable outflow of resources is expected 
to settle the obligation and

		  iii) 	 A reliable estimate of the amount of the 
obligation can be made.

		  Reimbursement of the expenditure required to 
settle a provision is recognised as per contract 
provisions or when it is virtually certain that 
reimbursement will be received. 

		  Provisions are reviewed at each Balance Sheet 
date.	

		  Provision which expected to be settled beyond 
12 months are measured at the present value 
by using pre-tax discount rate that reflects the 
risks specific to the liability. The increase in the 
provision due to the passage of time is recognized 
as interest expenses.

	 J) 	 Revenue Recognition 	

		  I) 	 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

			   Company Recognises revenue from contracts 
with customers based on a five-step as set 
out in Ind AS-115:-

			   (i) 	 Identify contracts with a customer:- A 
contract is defined as an agreement 
between two or more parties that creates 
enforceable rights and obligations and 
sets out the criteria for every contract 
that must be met.

			   (ii) 	 Identify performance obligations in the 
contract: A performance obligation is a 
promise in a contract with a customer to 
transfer a good or service to the customer.
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Notes forming Part of the Financial Statement 
ended 31st March, 2023

Notes forming Part of the Financial Statement 
ended 31st March, 2023

			   (iii)	 Determine the transaction price: The 
transaction price is the amount of 
consideration to which the company 
expects to be entitled in exchange for 
transferring promised goods or services 
to a customer excluding amounts 
collected on behalf of third parties.

			   (iv)	 Allocate the transaction price to the 
performance obligations in the contract: 
For a contract that has more than one 
performance obligation the Company 
allocates the transaction price to each 
performance obligation in an amount 
that depicts the amount of consideration 
to which the Company expects to be 
entitled in exchange for satisfying each 
performance obligation.

			   (v) 	 Recognise revenue when or as the Company 
satisfies a performance obligation.

		  The Company assesses its revenue arrangements 
against specific criteria to determine if it 
is acting as principal or agent. Revenue is 
recognized based on the nature of activity when 
consideration can be reasonably measured and 
there exits reasonable certainty of its recovery. 
Revenue from construction/project related 
activity is measured at the amount company 
expects to be entitled taking into account 
contractually defined terms of payment and 
excluding taxes and duty	

		  II)     Other Revenue Recognition	

			   Interest income is recognized on a time 
proportion basis taking into account the amount 
outstanding and the interest rate applicable 
using Effective Interest rate Method.	

	 K) 	 Impairment of non-financial assets	

		  In accordance with Indian Accounting 
Standard-36 Impairment of Assets, the carrying 
amounts of Company’s assets are reviewed at 
each Balance Sheet date to determine whether 
there is any indication of impairment. If any such 
indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount 
is estimated as the higher of the net selling 
price or the value in use. An impairment loss is 
recognized whenever the carrying amount of 
an asset or its cash generating unit exceeds its 
recoverable amount.

		  On the basis of review, the management is of 
the opinion that the economic performance of 
Fixed Assets of the Company is not lower than 

expected and therefore there is no impairment 
of any assets as on the Balance Sheet date.

	 L) 	 Taxes.	

		  a) 	 Current income tax

			   i.	 Taxes including current income-tax are 
computed using the applicable tax rates 
and tax laws.	

			   ii. 	 The tax rates and tax laws used to 
compute the amount are those that are 
enacted or substantively enacted, at the 
reporting date in the countries where 
the company operates and generates 
taxable income.	

			   iii. 	 Current income tax assets and liabilities 
for current and prior periods are 
measured at the amount expected to be 
recovered from or paid to the taxation 
authorities, liability for additional taxes 
if any, is provided / paid as and when 
assessments are completed.	

			   iv.  Current tax related to OCI Item are 
recognized in Other Comprehensive 
Income (OCI).

		  b) 	 Deferred tax	

			   i. 	 Deferred income tax is recognized using 
balance sheet approach.	

			   ii. 	 Deferred income tax assets and liabilities 
are recognized for temporary differences 
which is computed using the tax rates 
and tax laws that have been enacted or 
substantively enacted at the reporting date.

			   iii. 	 Deferred income tax asset are recognized 
to the extent that it is probable that 
taxable profit will be available against 
which the deductible temporary 
differences, and the carry forward of 
unused tax credits and unused tax losses 
can be utilized.	

			   iv. 	 The carrying amount of deferred income 
tax assets is reviewed at each reporting 
date and reduced to the extent that 
it is no longer probable that sufficient 
taxable profit will be available to allow all 
or part of the deferred income tax asset 
to be utilized.

			   v. 	 Deferred tax related to OCI Item are 
recognized in Other Comprehensive 
Income (OCI).

	 M) 	Earnings Per Share.

		  In determining basic earnings per share, the 
company considers the net profit attributable to 
equity shareholders. The number of shares used 
in computing basic earnings per share is the 
weighted average number of shares outstanding 
during the period. In determining diluted 
earnings per share, the net profit attributable 
to equity shareholders and weighted average 
number of shares outstanding during the period 
are adjusted for the effect of all dilutive potential 
equity shares.

	 N) 	� Contingent Liabilities and contingent 
Assets	

		  (a)	 Contingent Liabilities are disclosed in either 
of the following case	

			   i)	 A present obligation arising from a past 
event, when it is not probable that an 
outflow of resources will be required to 
settle the obligation; or	

			   ii) 	 A reliable estimate of the present 
obligation cannot be made; or	

			   iii) 	 A possible obligation, unless the 
probability of outflow of  resource is 
remote.	

		  (b)	 Contingent assets is disclosed where an inflow 
of economic benefits is probable.	

		  (c)	 Contingent Liability and Provisions needed 
against Contingent Liability and Contingent 
Assets are reviewed at each Reporting date.

		  (d)	 Contingent Liability is net of estimated 
provisions considering possible outflow on 
settlement.

	 O) 	 Fair Value Measurement

		  Company measures financial instruments at 
fair value at each reporting date. Fair value is the 
price that would be received to sell an asset or 
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction 
between market participants at the measurement 
date. The fair value measurement is based on 
the presumption that the transaction to sell the 
asset or transfer the liability takes place either: 
• in the principal market for the asset or liability, or 
• In the absence of a principal market, in the most 
advantageous market for the asset or liability. 
 
The principal or the most advantageous market must 
be accessible to the company. The fair value of an 
asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions 

that market participants would use when pricing the 
asset or liability, assuming that market participants 
act in their economic best interest. The company 
uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in 
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are 
available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of 
relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of 
unobservable inputs.

	 P) 	 Employee Benefits	

		  a. 	 Short term employee Benefits	

			   The undiscounted amounts of short-term 
employee benefits expected to be paid for 
the services rendered are recognized as 
an expense during the period when the 
employees render the services. Defined 
Contribution Plans such as Group Medi-
claim & Group Personal Accident policy are 
recognized as expense and charged to the 
Statement of Profit and Loss.

		  b. 	 Post Employment Benefits	

			   a) 	 Company Obligation towards gratuity, 
earned leave are actuarially determined 
and provided for.	

			   b) 	 Re-measurements comprising of 
actuarial gains and losses, the effect of 
the asset ceiling, excluding amounts 
included in net interest of defined benefit 
liability and the return on plan assets 
(excluding amounts included in the 
net interest on the net defined benefit 
liability), are recognised immediately 
in Other Comprehensive Income(OCI) 
in the period in which they occur. Re-
measurements are not reclassified to 
Profit & Loss in subsequent period.

	 Q) 	 Cash and cash equivalent	

		  Cash and cash equivalent comprise cash at 
bank and on hand. It includes term deposits and 
short term money market deposits with original 
maturities of three months or less that are readily 
convertible to known amounts of cash and which 
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in 
value.

	 R) 	 Financial instruments	

		  Initial recognition and measurement

		  Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially 
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are 
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of 
financial assets and financial liabilities (other than 
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Notes forming Part of the Financial Statement 
ended 31st March, 2023

Notes forming Part of the Financial Statement 
ended 31st March, 2023

financial asset and liabilities at fair value through 
profit & loss) are added to or deducted from the 
fair value measured on initial recognition of the 
financial assets or financial liabilities.

		  However, trade receivables that do not contain a 
significant financing component are measured 
at transaction price.

		  a. 	 Subsequent measurement

			   Financial Assets

			   Financial assets are classified in following 
categories:

			   a) 	 At Amortised Cost

			   b) 	� Fair value through Other Comprehensive 
Income.

			   c) �	 Fair value through Profit and loss account

		  b. 	 Debt Instrument at Amortised Cost

			   A financial asset shall be measured at 
amortised cost if both of the following 
conditions are met: 

			   (a) 	 the financial asset is held within a 
business model whose objective is to 
hold financial assets in order to collect 
contractual cash flows and 

			   (b) 	 The contractual terms of the financial 
asset give rise on specified dates to 
cash flows that are solely payments of 
principal and interest on the principal 
amount outstanding.

			   Financial assets measured at amortised cost 
using effective interest rate method less 
impairment if any. The EIR amortisation is 
included in finance income in the statement 
of profit and loss. 

		  c. 	 Debt instrument at FVTOCI

			   A ‘debt instrument’ is classified as at the 
FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are met:

			   • 	 The objective of the business model is 
achieved both by collecting contractual 
cash flows and selling the financial 
assets, and

			   • 	 The asset’s contractual cash flows 
represent SPPI.

			   Debt instruments included within the 
FVTOCI category are measured initially as 

well as at each reporting date at fair value. 
Fair value movements are recognized in 
the other comprehensive income (OCI). 
However, the company recognizes interest 
income, impairment losses & reversals and 
foreign exchange gain or loss in the P&L. 
On de-recognition of the asset, cumulative 
gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is 
reclassified from the equity to P&L. Interest 
earned is recognised using the EIR method.

		  d. 	 Debt instrument at FVTPL

			   FVTPL is a residual category for financial Assets. 
Any financial assets, which does not meet 
the criteria for categorization as at amortized 
cost or as FVTOCI, is classified as at FVTPL. 
In addition, the company may elect to 
designate financial asset, which otherwise 
meets amortized cost or FVTOCI criteria, 
as at FVTPL. If doing so reduces or 
eliminates a measurement or recognition 
inconsistency. The company has not 
designated any financial asset as at FVTPL. 
Financial assets included within the FVTPL 
category are measured at fair value with all 
changes recognized in the P&L.

			   Financial liabilities

     			   a) 	 Financial liabilities at Amortised Cost

		       Financial liabilities at amortised cost 
represented by trade and other payables, 
security deposits and retention   money 
are initially recognized at fair value and 
subsequently carried at amortized cost 
using the effective interest rate method.

			   b) 	 Financial liabilities at FVTPL

				    The company has not designated any 
financial liabilities at FVTPL.

		  e. 	 Derecognition

			   Financial Asset

			   A financial asset (or, where applicable, a 
part of a financial asset or part of a group 
of similar financial assets) is derecognized 
only when the contractual rights to the  cash 
flows from the asset expires or it transfers 
the financial assets and substantially all risks 
and rewards of the ownership of the asset.

			   Financial Liability

			   A financial liability is derecognised when the 
obligation under the liability is discharged 

or cancelled or expires. When an existing 
financial liability is replaced by another from 
the same lender on substantially different 
terms or the terms of an existing liability are 
substantially modified, such an exchange or 
modification is treated as a derecognition 
of the original liability and the recognition 
of a new liability and the difference in the 
respective carrying amounts is recognised 
in the income statement.

		  f. 	 Impairment of assets

			   Financial Asset

			   In according with Ind As 109, the company 
applies expected credit loss (ECL) model 
for measurement and recognition of 
impairment loss on the  following financial 
assets and credit risk exposure :

			   a) 	 Financial Assets that are debt 
instruments, are measured at amortised 
cost e.g. loans, debt securities, deposits, 
trade receivables and bank balance.

			   b) 	 Trade receivables or any contractual 
right to receive cash or another financial 
asset that result from transactions that 
are within the scope of Ind As 115. 

			   The Company follows simplified approach’ 
for recognition of impairment loss allowance 
on

			   - 	 Trade receivables and

			   -	 Other financial assets

			   Trade receivable:

			�   Also the receivable from company 
comapnies are considered to be good and 
there are neither been any past instances 
of default and also management does not 
expect any default in case of comapany 
receivables, therefore impairment losses are 
not recognised as per Ind AS 109.

			   Non- Financial Asset

			   The carrying value of assets/cash generating 
units at each balance sheet date are 
reviewed for impairment. If any indication of 
impairment exist, the recoverable amount of 
such assets is estimated and impairment is 
recognised, if the carrying amount of these 
assets exceeds their recoverable amount. 
The recoverable amount is the higher of 
the fair value less cost of disposal and their 

value in use. Value in use is arrived at by 
discounting the future cash flows to their 
present value using a pre-tax discount rate 
that reflects current market assessments of 
the time value of money and the risk specific 
to the asset for which the estimates of future 
cash flows have not been adjusted. When 
there is indication that an impairment loss 
recognized for an asset in earlier accounting 
periods no longer exists or may have 
decreased, such reversal of Impairment loss 
is recognized in the Statement of Profit and 
Loss.

			   Intangible assets are tested for impairment 
whenever events or changes in circumstances 
indicate that the carrying amount may not 
be recoverable. The recoverable amount is 
the higher of an asset’s fair value less cost of 
disposal and its value in use. 

	 S) 	 Project Transfer	

		  MoR Funded Projects through RVNL: PWIP of 
MoR funded projects  are adjusted against fund 
received from MoR through RVNL. The amount 
of expenditure incurred on  projects recognised 
during the period including opening balance 
of PWIP for MoR funded projects are being 
adjusted as at 31.03.2018 from the  fund received 
from MoR through RVNL and from subsequent 
year adjustment are carried out on annually 
basis. 

	 T) 	 Significant Accounting Policies:

		  An assets shall classify as current assets when: 

		  (a)	 it expects to realise the asset, or intends to 
sell or consume it, in its normal operating 
cycle;

		  (b)	 it holds the asset primarily for the purpose of 
trading;

		  (c)	 it expects to realise the asset within twelve 
months after the reporting period;

		  (d)	 the asset is cash or a cash equivalent unless 
the asset is restricted from being exchanged 
or used to settle a liability for at least twelve 
months after the reporting period.

		  The company shall classify all other assets as 
non-current.

		  Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from 
being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at 
least twelve months after the reporting period.
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Notes forming Part of the Financial Statement 
ended 31st March, 2023

Notes forming Part of the Financial Statement 
ended 31st March, 2023

		  Current Liability – A Liability shall classify a 
current liability  when: 

		  (a) 	 it expects to settle the liability in its normal 
operating cycle;

		  (b)	 it holds the liability primarily for the purpose 
of trading; 

		  (c)	 the liability is due to be settled within twelve 
months after the reporting period; or

		  (d)	 it does not have an unconditional right to 
defer settlement of the liability for at least 
twelve months after the reporting period. 

		  The company shall classify all other liabilities as 
non-current.

		  The operating cycle is the time between the 
acquisition of assets for processing and their 
realization in cash or cash equivalents. The 
company has identified, twelve months as its 
operating cycle.	

	 U)	 The Accounting Policies that are currently not 
relevant to the company have not been disclosed, 
when such accounting policies become relevant, 
the same shall be disclosed.

	 V) �	� Standard/Amendments issued but not yet 
effective-	

		  MCA had issued the Indian Accounting Standards 
Amendments Rules, 2023 vide notification dated 
31st March 2023.In the Indian Accounting Standards 
Amendments Rules, 2023, amendments has been 
made in following standards:-

		  1. 	� First-time Adoption of Indian Accounting 
Standards (Ind AS-101)

		  2. 	 Share Based Payment (Ind AS-102)

		  3. 	 Business Combinations (Ind AS-103)

		  4. 	� Financial Instruments: Disclosures (Ind AS-107)

		  5. 	 Financial Instruments (Ind AS-109)

		  6. 	� Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Ind 
AS-115)

		  7. 	� Presentation of Financial Statements (Ind AS-1)

		  8.  	 Income Taxes (Ind AS- 12)

		  9.  	 Interim Financial Reporting (Ind AS- 34)

		  10. �	 Accounting policies, Changes in accounting 
Estimates and Errors (Ind AS-8)

		  The effective date of these amendments is annual 
periods beginning on or after 1st April 2023. The 
Company is currently evaluating the impact of 
the amendments   and has not yet determined 
the impact on the financial statements.

 (J in Lakhs)

Particulars
Office  

Equipments 
Furniture & 

Fixtures
EDP Asset Total

Cost or valuation
As at 31st March 2021  0.22  -    -    0.22 
Additions  3.89  2.80  4.88  11.57 
Disposals/Adjustments  -    -    -    -   
As at 31st March 2022  4.11  2.80  4.88  11.79 
Additions  2.18  0.97  8.33  11.48 
Disposals/Adjustments  -    -    -    -   
As at 31st March 2023  6.29  3.77  13.21  23.27 
Depreciation and impairment
As at 31st March 2021  0.21  -    -    0.21 
Depreciation charge for the year  0.22  0.20  0.90  1.32 
Disposals/Adjustments  -    -    -    -   
As at 31st March 2022  0.43  0.20  0.90  1.53 
Depreciation charge for the year  0.81  0.50  3.96  5.27 
Disposals/Adjustments  -    -    -    -   
As at 31st March 2023  1.24  0.70  4.86  6.80 
Net book value
As at 31st March 2023  5.05  3.07  8.35  16.48 
As at 31st March 2022  3.68  2.60  3.98  10.26 

(J in Lakhs)

Particulars Software TOTAL

Cost or valuation
As at 31st March 2021  -    -   
Additions  -    -   
Disposals/Adjustments  -    -   
As at 31st March 2022  -    -   
Additions  0.54  0.54 
Disposals/Adjustments  -    -   
As at 31st March 2023  0.54  0.54 
Depreciation and impairment
As at 31st March 2021  -    -   
Depreciation charge for the year  -   
Disposals/Adjustments  -    -   
As at 31st March 2022  -    -   
Depreciation charge for the year  0.06  0.06 
Disposals/Adjustments  -    -   
As at 31st March 2023  0.06  0.06 
Net book value
As at 31st March 2023  0.48  0.48 
As at 31st March 2022  -    -   

Note : There is no Capital Work-in-Progress and Intangible Asset under Development as on 31st March, 2023.	

NOTE: 3.  Property, Plant and Equipment

NOTE: 3.1 Intangible Assets

Note : Property, Plant and Eqiupments has not been revalued during the year.
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Notes forming Part of the Financial Statement 
ended 31st March, 2023

Notes forming Part of the Financial Statement 
ended 31st March, 2023

NOTE: 4 Deferred Tax

NOTE: 5 Trade Receivables

(J in Lakhs)

Particulars
As at 

31 March 2023
As at  

31 March 2022 

Deferred tax liability  -    -   
Deferred tax assets  (11.31)  (0.90)
Deferred tax liability (Net of deferred tax assets)  (11.31)  (0.90)
The balance comprises to temporary differences attributable to:
Deferred Tax Assets
Provision for employee benefits  (11.36)  (1.04)
Deferred tax liability
Property, Plant and Equipment & Intangible Assets  0.05  0.14 

 (11.31)  (0.90)

Note: 4.1 Movement in Deferred Tax Liability/(Assets)
(J in Lakhs)

Particulars
Property, Plant 
and  Intangible 

Equipment

Employee 
Benefits

Total

Closing balance as at 31st March 2022  0.14  (1.04)  (0.90)
Charged/(credited) during the period
To Statement of Profit and Loss  (0.09)  (10.33)  (10.42)
To Other comprehensive Income  -    0.01  0.01 
Closing balance as at 31st March 2023  0.05  (11.36)  (11.31)

(J in Lakhs)

Particulars
As at 

31 March 2023
As at  

31 March 2022 

Unsecured Considered good
    -	 Trade Receivables  277.81  619.86 
    -	 Unbilled Revenue  387.56  150.82 
Total  665.37  770.68 

Note: 5.1 Trade Receivables, Ageing, Schedule
As at 31st March 2023

(J in Lakhs)

Particulars
Outstanding for a periods from due date of payment

 Unbilled 
Revenue   TotalLess than 

6 months
6 Months 

-1 Year 1-2 years 2-3 years  More than 3 
years 

(i) 	 Undisputed Trade receivables – 
considered good

 277.81  -    -    -    -    387.56  665.37 

(ii)	� Undisputed Trade Receivables – 
which have significant increase 
in credit risk

 -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

(iii)   �Undisputed Trade Receivables 
– credit impaired

 -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

(iv)	� Disputed Trade Receivables– 
considered good

 -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

(v)	� Disputed Trade Receivables 
– which have significant 
increase in credit risk

 -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

(vi)	� Disputed Trade Receivables – 
credit Impaired

 -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

Total  277.81  -    -    -    -    387.56  665.37 

As at 31st March 2022
(J in Lakhs)

Particulars
Outstanding for a periods from due date of payment

 Unbilled 
Revenue  

 TotalLess than 
6 months

6 Months 
-1 Year

1-2 years 2-3 years
 More than 3 

years 

(i)	 Undisputed Trade receivables – 
considered good

 619.86  -    -    -    -    150.82  770.68 

(ii)	 Undisputed Trade Receivables 
– which have significant 
increase in credit risk

 -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

(iii)	 Undisputed Trade Receivables 
– credit impaired

 -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

(iv)	 Disputed Trade Receivables– 
considered good

 -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

(v)	 Disputed Trade Receivables 
– which have significant 
increase in credit risk

 -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

(vi)	 Disputed Trade Receivables – 
credit Impaired

 -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

Total  619.86  -    -    -    -    150.82  770.68 

Note: 5.2- Trade receivables includes Rs 277.81 Lakhs from Related Party (Refer Note No. 27 for details)

Note: 5.3 Transaction date of Trade Receivables is considered as due date of payment for the purpose of calculation of 
	 ageing of trade receivables.

(J in Lakhs)

Particulars
As at 

31 March 2023
As at  

31 March 2022 

Balances with banks:
	 – 	 On Current accounts  2,213.63  23.18 
	 – 	 Flexi Accounts  700.90  2,381.50 
Cheque in transit  -    -   
Imprest to Employees  0.07  0.30 
Total  2,914.60  2,404.98 

(J in Lakhs)

Particulars
As at 

31 March 2023
As at  

31 March 2022 

Unsecured, Considered Good
	 Security Deposit 2.28 0.88
	 Accrued Interest on FDR  62.86 60.42
Term Deposit in having (Original Maturity more  than 12 months) 1470.00 1400.00
Total  1,535.14  1,461.30 

NOTE:  6 Cash and cash equivalents

NOTE:  7 Other Financial Asset
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Notes forming Part of the Financial Statement 
ended 31st March, 2023

Notes forming Part of the Financial Statement 
ended 31st March, 2023

(J in Lakhs)

Particulars
As at 

31 March 2023
As at  

31 March 2022 

Input Credit of GST  -    1.57 
Prepaid Expenses  2.98  7.14 
Advance For TRavelling Exp.  0.51  -   
Total  3.49  8.71 

NOTE:  8 Other current assets

(J in Lakhs)

Particulars As at 
31 March 2023

As at  
31 March 2022 

Authorised share capital
September 30, 2022 5,00,00,000 (March 31, 2022: 5,00,00,000 Equity share of  
H 10 each)

 5,000.00  5,000.00 

 5,000.00  5,000.00 
Issued, Subscribed and Fully Paid up Capital
March 31, 2023 4,50,00,000 ( March 31, 2022: 4,50,00,000 Equity share of  H 10 each)  4,500.00  4,500.00 

 4,500.00  4,500.00 

Note 9.1 Reconciliation of the number of equity shares and share capital

Particulars
As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022 

No. of Shares  
(in Lakhs)

( H in Lakhs)
No. of Shares  

(in Lakhs)
( J in Lakhs)

Issued/Subscribed and Paid up equity Capital 
outstanding at the beginning of the year

 450.00  4,500.00  1.07  10.74 

Changes in Equity Share Capital due to prior 
period error

 -    -    -    -   

Restated balance at the beginning of current 
reporting period

 450.00  4,500.00  1.07  10.74 

Shares issued during the year  -    -    448.93  4,489.26 
Issued/Subscribed and Paid up equity Capital 
outstanding at the end of the year

 450.00  4,500.00  450.00  4,500.00 

Terms/Rights attached to Equity Shares	 				  

The Company has only one class of equity shares referred to as equity shares having at par value of ₹ 10/-. Each holder of 
one equity share is entitled to one vote per share. In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of  equity shares 
shall be entitled to receive  any of the  remaining assets of the company, after distribution of all preferential amounts..

Shares held by Holding Company

The Company is a 100% Wholly Owned Subsidiary  of  Rail Vikas Nigam Limited (along with 6 Nominees of Holding 
Company). Rail Vikas  Nigam Limited  holds  shares & its  Nominee  holds 6 shares, Face value of share is ₹ 10 each..

NOTE: 9 Equity Share Capital

Details of shares held by shareholders holding more than 5% of the aggregate shares in the Company	

Particulars
As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022 

No. of Shares  
(in Lakhs)

% holding in 
the class

No. of Shares  
(in Lakhs)

% holding in 
the class

Rail Vikas Nigam Limited (along with  6 
Nominees) -Holding Company (4,50,00,000 
shares fully paid up @ ₹ 10/- per share)

 450.00 100.00%  450.00 100.00%

Total  450.00 100.00%  450.00 100.00%

Aggregate no. of equity shares issued as bonus, shares issued for consideration other than cash and shares 
bought  back during the period of five years immediately preceding the reporting date

Particulars

 31st March 
2023

31st March 
2022

31st March 
2021

31st March 
2020

 31st March 
2019

Number Number Number Number Number

Equity shares allotted other than cash  -    -    -    -    -   
Equity shares issue as bonus  -    -    -    -    -   
Total  -    -    -    -    -   

Details of shares held by Promoters

Particulars
As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022 

No. of Shares  
(in Lakhs)

% holding in 
the class

No. of Shares  
(in Lakhs)

% holding in 
the class

Rail Vikas Nigam Limited (along with  6 
Nominees) -Holding Company (4,50,00,000 
shares fully paid up @ ₹ 10/- per share)

 450.00 100.00%  450.00 100.00%

(J in Lakhs)

Particulars
As at 

31 March 2023
As at  

31 March 2022 

Retained Earnings (Refer Note 10.1 )  501.56  171.18 
Share Application Money Pending allotment (Refer Note 10.2)  -    -   
Total  501.56  171.18 

NOTE:  10 Other Equity

 (H in Lakhs) 

Particulars
As at 

31 March 2023
As at  

31 March 2022 

Opening Balance  171.18  (19.21)
Add/less : Profit/(Loss) for the Year  330.38  190.61 
Less :- Share Issue Expenses  -    (0.22)
Closing Balance  501.56  171.18 

NOTE:  10.1 Retained Earnings

There is no change in shareholding % of Promoters during the year as well as in the previous year. No Interim or Final 
Dividend is declared/paid or proposed during the year. In the previous year, current year NIL equity share capital was 
issued for the purpose of purchase of Machinery, later on Board of Directors in their meeting agreed to use this equity 
for all other business activities of HSRC Infra Services Limited.
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Notes forming Part of the Financial Statement 
ended 31st March, 2023

Notes forming Part of the Financial Statement 
ended 31st March, 2023

(J in Lakhs)

Particulars
As at 

31 March 2023
As at  

31 March 2022 

Opening Balance  -    250.00 
Add: Share Application Money Received during the Year  4,239.26 
Less:- Share Issued During the Year  -    4,489.26 
Closing Balance  -    -   

NOTE:   10.2 Share application money pending allotments

(J in Lakhs)

Particulars
As at 

31 March 2023
As at  

31 March 2022 

Provision for Employee Benefits
	 Gratuity  7.50  1.84 
 	 Leave Encashment  5.71  2.23 
Total  13.21  4.07 

NOTE:   11 Non Current Provisions

(J in Lakhs)

Particulars As at 
31 March 2023

As at  
31 March 2022 

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises  92.07  55.93 
Total  92.07  55.93 
 Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small 
enterprises

 -    -   

Total  -    -   

NOTE: 12 Trade payable

Note 12.1 Trade Payables Ageing Schedule

(J in Lakhs)

Particulars As at 
31 March 2023

As at  
31 March 2022 

(i)	 Principal amount remaining unpaid  92.07  55.93 
(ii)	 Interest due thereon  -    -   
(iii)	� The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the 

MSMED Act, 2006 along with the amounts of the payment made to the 
supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting year.  

 -    -   

(iv)	� The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in 
making payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed day 
during the year) but without adding the interest specified under the 
MSMED Act, 2006  

 -    -   

(v)	� The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each 
accounting year

 -    -   

(vi)	� The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the 
succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues as above are 
actually paid to  the small enterprise for the purpose of disallowance as a 
deductible expenditure under section 23 of the MSMED Act, 2006. 

 -    -   

Micro and Small Enterprises under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 have been 
determined based on the information available with the company and the required disclosures are given below:

(J in Lakhs)

Particulars
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Less than 1 
year

1-2 years More than 3 year  Total 

(i)  	 MSME  92.07  -    -    92.07 
(ii)   Others  -    -    -    -   
(iii)  Disputed dues – MSME  -    -    -    -   
(iv)	 Disputed dues - Others  -    -    -    -   

As at 31st March 2022
(J in Lakhs)

Particulars
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Less than 1 
year

1-2 years More than 3 year  Total 

(i)  	 MSME  55.93  -    -    55.93 
(ii)   Others  -    -    -    -   
(iii)  Disputed dues – MSME  -    -    -    -   
(iv)	 Disputed dues - Others  -    -    -    -   

(J in Lakhs)

Particulars
As at 

31 March 2023
As at  

31 March 2022 

Other Payables
From Related party  3.40  2.45 
From Others  18.65  13.32 
Total  22.05  15.77 

Note : 13.1   Amount of Rs. 3.40 (FY 2021-22 Rs. 2.45 Lakhs) represents amount of expenditure incurred by RVNL on behalf 
of HSRC towards provident fund, this amount is payable by company..

NOTE: 13 Other financial liabilities

NOTE: 14 Other current liabilities
(J in Lakhs)

Particulars
As at 

31 March 2023
As at  

31 March 2022 

(i) Advance from Customer
From Related party  -    -   
From Other
(ii) 	Others
Others  -   2.36
Statutory Liabilities  -    -   
	 Tax Deducted at Source 10.25 5.08
	 Professional tax 0.07 0.03
	 Goods and Serivces Tax  21.25  -   
Provident Fund 0.54 0.43
Total  32.11  7.90 
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Notes forming Part of the Financial Statement 
ended 31st March, 2023

Notes forming Part of the Financial Statement 
ended 31st March, 2023

NOTE: 15 Current Provisions

NOTE: 16 Current Tax 

NOTE: 18 Other Income 

(J in Lakhs)

Particulars
As at 

31 March 2023
As at  

31 March 2022 

Provision for Employee Benefits
        Gratuity  0.02  -   
        Leave Encashment  0.17  0.07 
       Diwali Bonus  31.74  -   
Provision for Stamp Duty  0.22  0.22 
Total  32.15  0.29 

(J in Lakhs)

Particulars
As at 

31 March 2023
As at  

31 March 2022 

Current Tax Assets/ (Liabilities)
Prepaid taxes  168.57  158.72 
Provision for Current Tax  (122.29)  (60.41)
Total  46.28  98.31 
Net Current Assets/ (Liabilities)  46.28  98.31 

(J in Lakhs)

Particulars
For the year 

ended 
31 March 2023

For the year 
ended 

31 March 2022 

Interest on Flexi Account  76.76  30.67 
Interest on Fixed deposits Account  135.02  67.13 
Interest on Income Tax Refund  6.01  -   
Total  217.79  97.80 

NOTE: 17 Revenue from Operation
(J in Lakhs)

Particulars
For the year 

ended 
31 March 2023

For the year 
ended 

31 March 2022 

Sale of Services  1,657.39  1,487.49 
Total  1,657.39  1,487.49 

NOTE: 19 Expenses on Operation
(J in Lakhs)

Particulars
For the year 

ended 
31 March 2023

For the year 
ended 

31 March 2022 

Expense on Operation  903.73  1,164.13 
Total  903.73  1,164.13 

NOTE: 20 Employee Benefit Expenses

NOTE: 23 Other expenses

NOTE: 22 Depreciation and amortization expenses

(J in Lakhs)

Particulars
For the year 

ended 
31 March 2023

For the year 
ended 

31 March 2022 

Salary and Wages  334.38  104.33 
Contribution to Provident and other funds  23.71  7.28 
Staff Welfare Expenses  23.15  21.62 
Total  381.24  133.23 

(J in Lakhs)

Particulars
For the year 

ended 
31 March 2023

For the year 
ended 

31 March 2022 

Payment to Auditors:
	 As Auditors  2.16  1.80 
	 For Tax Audit  0.65  0.54 
	 For company Law Matters - -
	 For Management Services - -
	 For Other Services - -
	 For Reimbursement of Expenses  0.14  0.20 
Advertisement Expenses - -
Website Maintenance charges  0.44  0.87 
Legal & Professional Fees  58.73  18.57 
Office Expenses  0.45  0.32 
Communication Expenses  1.15  0.33 
Meeting and Confrence Expenses  4.67  1.87 
Printing & Stationary  0.63  2.00 
Subscription Charges  0.88  0.24 
Travelling & Conveyance  68.08  8.52 
Misc. Expenses  3.92  1.22 
ROC Fee Expenses  0.14  0.01 
Software Charges  0.01  -   
Total  142.05  36.49 

(J in Lakhs)

Particulars
For the year 

ended 
31 March 2023

For the year 
ended 

31 March 2022 

 Property Plant and equipment  5.27  1.32 
 Intangible Assets   0.06  -   
Total  5.33  1.32 

NOTE: 21 Finance costs
(J in Lakhs)

Particulars
For the year 

ended 
31 March 2023

For the year 
ended 

31 March 2022 

Interest Expenses  -    -   
Total  -    -   

386 387

HSRC INFRA SERVICES LIMITED
C

h
airm

an
’s M

essag
e

Statu
tory R

ep
orts

Fin
an

cial Statem
en

ts

Annual Report 2022-23



Notes forming Part of the Financial Statement 
ended 31st March, 2023

Notes forming Part of the Financial Statement 
ended 31st March, 2023

NOTE: 24 Earnings per share (EPS)
(J Per Share)

Particulars
For the year 

ended 
31 March 2023

For the year 
ended 

31 March 2022 

Basic EPS
From continuing operation  0.73  0.99 
From discontinuing operation  -    -   
Diluted EPS
From continuing operation  0.73  0.76 
From discontinuing operation  -    -   

24.1 Basic Earning per Share

Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the period attributable to equity holders of the company by 
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period

The earnings and weighted average number of equity shares used in calculation of basic earning per share:-

(No. of Shares in Lakhs)

Particulars
For the year 

ended 
31 March 2023

For the year 
ended 

31 March 2022 

Profit attributable to equity holders of the company:
Continuing  operations  330.37  190.61 
Discontinuing  operations
Earnings used in calculation of Basic Earning Per Share  330.37  190.61 
Weighted average number of shares for the purpose of basic earnings per 
share (in Lakhs)

 450.00  193.06 

24.2 Diluted Earning per Share					   

The earnings and weighted average number of equity shares used in calculation of diluted earning per share:-

(No. of Shares in Lakhs)

Particulars
For the year 

ended 
31 March 2023

For the year 
ended 

31 March 2022 

Profit attributable to equity holders of the company:
Continuing  operations  330.37  190.61 
Discontinuing  operations
	 Effect of Dilution  -    -   
Earnings used in calculation of diluted Earning Per Share from continuing 
operations

 330.37  190.61 

					   

The weighted number of equity shares for the purpose of diluted earning per share reconciles to the weighted average 
number of equity shares used in calculation of basic earning per share as follows:

(No. of Shares in Lakhs)

Particulars
For the year 

ended 
31 March 2023

For the year 
ended 

31 March 2022 

Weighted average number of Equity shares used in calculation of basic 
earnings per share 

 450.00  193.06 

Effect of dilution:  -    58.21 
Share Options
Weighted average number of Equity shares used in calculation of diluted 
earnings per share

 450.00  251.27 

NOTE: 25 IND AS-115 Disclosures 

The Company has adopted IND AS 115 Revenue from contracts with customers.  

Transition Method: 

The Company has applied modified retrospective approach for the application of Ind AS 115 “Revenue from contracts 
with customers”

25.1 Disaggregation of Revenue
(J in Lakhs)

Particulars
As at 

31 March 2023
As at 

31 March 2022 

Income From Project Management Consultancy  1,386.42  851.80 
Income from Project Feasibility Study  -    536.18 
Income from Business Development  270.97  99.51 
Total 1,657.39 1,487.49

Contract balances
(J in Lakhs)

Particulars
As at 

31 March 2023
As at 

31 March 2022 

Trade receivables  277.81  619.86 
Contract assets  387.56  150.82 
Contract liabilities  -    -   

Advance from Customers/ Trade Receivables
(J in Lakhs)

Particulars
As at 

31 March 2023
As at 

31 March 2022 

(Advance from Customer)/ Trade Receivables at the beginning of the year  619.86  (157.22)
Net Revenue Recognized during the year 1,657.39  1,487.49 
GST Billed to RVNL 242.58 238.67
Adjustments  (236.74)  (140.84)
Payment received during the year  (2,005.28)  (808.24)
Closing Balance of the Trade Receivables/ (Advances)  277.81  619.86 
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Notes forming Part of the Financial Statement 
ended 31st March, 2023

Notes forming Part of the Financial Statement 
ended 31st March, 2023

Contract Assets
(J in Lakhs)

Particulars
As at 

31 March 2023
As at 

31 March 2022 

Contract Asset at the beginning of the year  150.82 9.98
Transfer from Contract Asset to Trade Receivable and increase as a result of 
changes in measure of progress

 236.74  140.84 

Contract Asset at the end of the year  387.56  150.82 

Impairment loss recognized on any receivables or contract  assets arising from an the company’s contracts with 
customers is Nil during the year.

Contract Liabilities
(J in Lakhs)

Particulars
As at 

31 March 2023
As at 

31 March 2022 

Contract Liabilities at the beginning of the year   -     -   
Transfer from Contract Liabilities to Revenue and increase as a result of 
changes in measure of progress

 -    -   

Contract Liabilities at the end of the year  -    -   

There was no revenue recognized in the current reporting period that related to performance obligations that were 
satisfied in a prior year.

NOTE: 26 Tax Expense 
(J in Lakhs)

Particulars
As at 

31 March 2023
As at 

31 March 2022

Current income tax:
Current income tax charge  122.29  60.41 
Adjustments in respect of current income tax of previous year  0.59  -   
Deferred tax:
Relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences  (10.42)  (0.90)
Income tax expense reported in  the statement of profit or loss  112.46  59.51 

Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India’s domestic tax rate for period ended 
31st March 2023

(J in Lakhs)

Particulars
As at 

31 March 2023
As at 

31 March 2022 

Accounting profit before tax from continuing operations  442.83  250.12 
Profit/(loss) before tax from a discontinued operation
Accounting profit before income tax  442.83  250.12 
At India’s statutory income tax rate of 25.168%  111.45  62.95 
Adjustments in respect of current income tax of previous year  0.59  -   
Deferred tax  -    -   
Adjustments in respect of accumulated losses  (3.94)
Expenses Not deductable for Income Tax Purpose  0.42  0.49 
Non-deductible expenses for tax purposes:
Other non-deductible expenses
Income Tax expenses reported in Statement of profit and loss  112.46  59.51 
Effective tax Rate
Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit and loss  112.46  59.51 
Income tax attributable to a discontinued operation

 112.46  59.51 
Effective tax Rate 25.40% 23.79%

NOTE: 27 Related Party Disclosures:

a) 	 Related Parties holding equity of the Company

Name Relationship

As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022 

Number of 
shares held

% of Holding
Number of 

shares held

% of Holding

Rail Vikas Nigam Limited 
(along with  6 Nominees)

Parent 
Company

4,50,00,000.00 100.00%  4,50,00,000.00 100.00%

b)	  Key Managerial personnel of the entity

	 (i) 		  Pradeep Gaur : Chairman

	 (ii) 		  Rajesh Prasad : Director

	 (iii) 		 Vinay Singh : Director

	 (iv) 		 Ajay Kumar : Director ( Upto 31.01.2023)

	 (v) 		  Sanjeeb Kumar : Director

	 (vi) 		 Ajit Singh: CEO 

	 (vii) 	 Anupam Ban: Director (w.e.f. 13.02.2023)

	 (viii) 	 Kalpana Dubey : CS

	 (ix) 		 Mudit Mittal : CFO
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Notes forming Part of the Financial Statement 
ended 31st March, 2023

Notes forming Part of the Financial Statement 
ended 31st March, 2023

c) 	 Disclosure of transactions with related parties:

(J in Lakhs)

Particulars
Transactions 

during the Year 
22-23

Transactions 
during the year 

2021-22

Particulars 
of contracts/
Arrangements

Nature of Transaction

Transactions with Rail Vikas Nigam Limited  1,657.39  1,487.49 Income from operations
 40.08  21.77 PF Payment to RVNL
 59.63  -   Reimbursement of 

Expenses
 19.77  -   TA/DA and 

Imprest expenses 
reimbursement

 -    4,239.26 Amount received for 
Equity share capital, 
pending allotment

* Out of Rs. 1,657.39 lakhs Rs. 387.56 Lakhs (PY 2021-2022 Rs 1,487.49 out of 150.82 Lakhs ) is towards unbilled Revenue.

d) 	 Amount of outstanding balance 	
(J in Lakhs)

Particulars

Amount 
outstanding as 

at 31st March 
2023

Amount 
outstanding as 

at 31st March 
2022

Rail Vikas Nigam Limited-Other Payable  3.40  2.45 
Rail Vikas Nigam Limited-As Advance  -    -   
Rail Vikas Nigam Limited- Share Application Money Pending Allotment  -    -   
Rail Vikas Nigam Limited-Receivable  277.81  619.86 

The amount outstanding are unsecured and will be settled in cash. There have been no guarantees provided or received 
for any related party receivable or payable.					  

Sub-contract work have been received from Ministry of railways which has been made at the price prevailing in market.

e)	 Compensation to Key Managerial Personnel
(J in Lakhs)

Particulars
Compensation 
for FY 2022-23

Compensation 
for FY 2021-22

CS Kalpana Dubey*  0.30  1.20 

* Remuneration in the FY 2022-23 consists the Honararium paid for assisting in managing the work of company secretary 
(as per board’s resolution ) (Rs. 0.30 Lakhs) 	

NOTE: 28 Capital Management:
The Company’s objective is to manage its capital in a manner to ensure and safeguard their ability to continue as a going 
concern so that the Company can continue to provide maximum returns to shareholders and benefit to other stakeholders.

Further, the Company manages its capital structure to make adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions and the 
requirements of the financial covenants. The Company does not have any liability towards borrowings as at 31st March 2023 . 
The Company manages its working capital requirement through internal accruals. 

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the year ended on March 31, 2023..

(J in Lakhs)

Particulars As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022 

FVTPL FVTOCI
Amortised 

Cost
FVTPL FVTOCI

Amortised 
CostFinancial Assets 

(i)   	Trade Receivables  -    -    665.37  -    -    770.68 
(ii) 	 Cash and Cash Equivalents  -    -    2,914.60  -    -    2,404.98 
(iii)  Other financial asset  -    -    1,535.14  -    -    1,461.30 
Total  Financial Assets  -    -    5,115.11  -    -    4,636.96 

(J in Lakhs)

Particulars As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022 

FVTPL FVTOCI
Amortised 

Cost
FVTPL FVTOCI

Amortised 
Cost Financial Liabilities 

(i) Trade Payable  -    -    92.07  -    -    55.93 
(ii) Other Payable  -    -    22.05  -    -    15.77 
Total  Financial Assets  -    -    114.12  -    -    71.70 

NOTE: 29 Fair Value measurements

(i) Financial Instruments by Category

Financial risk management

The Company’s principal financial liabilities comprise other payables. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is 
to finance the company’s operations. The Company’s principal financial assets include cash.  The Company’s activities 
expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. Company has not hedged its Financial 
risks. All risks are Uncovered risk..

Credit risk							     

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to 
meet its contractual obligations. Credit risk arises from cash held with banks and financial institutions. The maximum 
exposure to credit risk is equal to the carrying value of the financial assets. The objective of managing counterparty 
credit risk is to prevent losses in financial assets. The Company assesses the credit quality of the counterparties, taking 
into account their financial position, past experience and other factors..

Liquidity risk							     

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they become due. The 
Company manages its liquidity risk by ensuring, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its 
liabilities when due.							    

The Company  take care for liquidity, funding as well as settlement management. In addition, processes and policies 
related to such risks are overseen by senior management.	

Financial instruments and cash deposits

Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions is managed in accordance with the companies policy. 
Investment of surplus are made only with approved with counterparty on the basis of the financial quotes received 
from the counterparty.

d) 	 Liquidity risk

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rest with the board of directors the company manages maintaining 
adequate banking facilities and reserves borrowing facilities by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows 
and by matching the maturities of financial liabilities							     

The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of financial liabilities. The table has been drawn up 
based on cash flows of the financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the company may be required to pay.
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Notes forming Part of the Financial Statement 
ended 31st March, 2023

Notes forming Part of the Financial Statement 
ended 31st March, 2023

Details as on 31st March 2023 are as follows:-
(J in Lakhs)

Particulars Upto 1 Year  1 to 3 years  3 to 5 years 
 More than 5 

years 
Total

Trade Payable  92.07  -    -    -    92.07 
Other Financial Liabilities  22.05  -    -    -    22.05 
Total  114.12  -    -    -    114.12 

Details as on 31st March 2022 are as follows:-
(J in Lakhs)

Particulars Upto 1 Year  1 to 3 years  3 to 5 years 
 More than 5 

years 
Total

Trade Payable  55.93  -    -    -    55.93 
Other Financial Liabilities  15.77  -    -    -    15.77 
Total  71.70  -    -    -    71.70 

Note 30: Previous Year figures has been rearranged, reclassified/recasted and regrouped wherever necessary to make 
them comparable with those of the current year. The details of which are as under:

(i) 	 No reclasification has done for the items of balance sheet for the year ended 31st March 2023.

(ii) 	 Items of statement of profit and loss before and after reclassification for the year ended 31st March 2023

(J in Lakhs)

Particulars
  Before 

reclassification   
 Reclassification

After 
reclassification  

Employees Benefit Expense 125.95 7.28 133.23
Other Expenses 43.77 (7.28) 36.49

Note 31:-  There are no leases in company accordingly due to Ind AS 116 (leases) there is no impact on Financial 
Statements..

Note 32: Segment Reporting Ind AS 108					   

The company operates within India and does not have operations in economic environments with different risks and 
returns. Hence, it is considered operating in single geographical segment. The amounts appearing in the financial 
statements relate to the company’s single operating segment..

Note 33: General description of various defined employee’s benefits schemes are as under:

a) 	 Provident Fund:							     

	 The company pays fixed contribution to provident fund at pre-determined rate. The liability is recognised on accrual basis..

b) 	 Gratuity:

	� The Company provides financial assistance to the employees of the Company as a  social security measures on the 
termination of their employment due to superannuation, retirement, resignation, physical incapacitation or death 
as per the provisions of Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972..							     

	� The disclosure of information as required under Ind AS-19 have been made in accordance with the actuarial 
valuation and liability is recognized on the basis of Actuarial valuation..

c) 	 Leave:							     

	� The company provides for earned leave benefits to the employees of the company, which accrue annually at 30 days 
respectively. Only the leave in the encashable leave account is encashable once in a calendar year while in service 
and a maximum of 300 days on superannuation.							     

	 The liability on this account is recognized on the basis of actuarial valuation.				    .

	� The summarized position of various defined benefits recognized in the Statement of Profit & Loss, Other 
Comprehensive Income(OCI) and Balance Sheet & other disclosures are as under:

(a) 	Assumptions

 

Particulars
As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022 

Gratuity 
(Unfunded)

Earned Leave  
(Unfunded)

Gratuity 
(Unfunded)

Earned Leave 
(Unfunded)

Discounting Rate  7.39  7.39  7.26  7.26 
Future salary Increase  7.00  7.00  7.00  7.00 
Expected Rate of return on plan assets  -    -    -    -   
Retirement Age 60 60 60 60
Mortality rates inclusive of provision for 
disability

IALM (2012 
- 14)

IALM (2012 
- 14)

IALM (2012 - 14) IALM (2012 - 14)

(b) 	Net defined benefit obligation

 (J in Lakhs)

Particulars
As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022 

Gratuity 
(Unfunded)

Earned Leave  
(Unfunded)

Gratuity 
(Unfunded)

Earned Leave 
(Unfunded)

Opening Present value of obligation  1.84  2.30 
Acquisition Adjustment  -    -   
Interest Cost  0.13  0.17 
Current service cost  5.56  4.46  1.84  2.30 
Benefits paid/written off  -    -5.40 
Actuarial loss/(gain) on obligations -0.02  4.37 
Closing Present value of obligation  7.52  5.88  1.84  2.30 

(c) Fair Value of Plan Assets

 (J in Lakhs)

Particulars
As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022 

Gratuity 
(Unfunded)

Earned Leave  
(Unfunded)

Gratuity 
(Unfunded)

Earned Leave 
(Unfunded)

Opening Fair value of plan assets  -    -    -    -   
Actual Return on Plan Assets  -    -    -    -   
Employer Contributions  -    -    -    -   
Benefits Paid  -    -    -    -   
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year  -    -    -    -   
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Notes forming Part of the Financial Statement 
ended 31st March, 2023

Notes forming Part of the Financial Statement 
ended 31st March, 2023

(d) Amount recognized in balance sheet

 (J in Lakhs)

Particulars
As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022 

Gratuity 
(Unfunded)

Earned Leave  
(Unfunded)

Gratuity 
(Unfunded)

Earned Leave 
(Unfunded)

Present value of obligation 7.52 5.88 1.84 2.30
Fair value of plan assets  -    -    -    -   
"Net assets / (liability) recognized in 
balance sheet as provision"

(7.52) (5.88) (1.84) (2.30)

(e) 	Expense recognized in the statement of Profit & Loss Account

 (J in Lakhs)

Particulars
As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022 

Gratuity 
(Unfunded)

Earned Leave  
(Unfunded)

Gratuity 
(Unfunded)

Earned Leave 
(Unfunded)

Current service cost 5.56 4.46 1.84  2.30 
Interest Cost  0.13  0.17  -    -   
Actuarial Gain and loss  (0.02)  4.37  -    -   
Total expenses recognized in Profit & Loss 
Account

5.68 8.99 1.84 2.30

(f)	  �Enterprise best estimate of expense for the next Annual reporting period Rs. 7.92/- Lakhs for Gratuity and Rs 
6.09/- Lakhs for the Earned Leave Liability.

(g) 	Bifurcation of PBO at the end of year as per schedule III to the companies Act, 2013.

 (J in Lakhs)

Particulars
As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022 

Gratuity 
(Unfunded)

Earned Leave  
(Unfunded)

Gratuity 
(Unfunded)

Earned Leave 
(Unfunded)

Current liability (Amount due within one 
year)

 0.02 0.16 0 0.07

Non-Current liability (Amount due over 
one year)

 7.50 5.72 1.84 2.23

Total PBO at the end of year  7.52  5.88 1.84 2.30

(h) 	Sensitivity Analysis of the defined benefit obligation.

 (J in Lakhs)

Particulars
As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022 

Gratuity 
(Unfunded)

Earned Leave  
(Unfunded)

Gratuity 
(Unfunded)

Earned Leave 
(Unfunded)

Impact of Change in Discount rate
Present Value of Obligation at the end of 
the period

7.52 5.88 1.84 2.30

	 Impact due to increase of  0.50% (0.57) (0.38) (0.14) (0.14)
	 Impact due to decrease of  0.50 % 0.63 0.41 0.16 0.15
Impact of Change in Salary increase
Present Value of Obligation at the end of 
the period

7.52 5.88 1.84 2.30

	 Impact due to increase of  0.50% 0.63 0.41 0.16 0.15
	 Impact due to decrease of  0.50 % (0.57) (0.38) (0.14) (0.14)

Note 34: Disclosures pursuant to amendment 
in Schedule III of the Companies Act 2013:

The MCA vide notification dated 23rd March 2021 has 
amended Schedule Ill to the Companies Act. 2013 in 
respect of certain disclosures which are applicable from 
1st April 2021. The Company has incorporated the changes 
as per the said amendment in the financial statements 
and below disclosures are made in compliance of the 
said amendment :

(i) 	 The Company has no transactions with companies 
struck off under section 248 of the Companies Act, 
2013 or Section 560 of Companies Act, 1956 during 
the period.

(ii) 	 The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto 
Currency or Virtual Currency during the period.

(iii)  The Compnay do not have any Benami property, where 
any proceeding has been initiated or pending against 
the company for holding any Benami property.

(iv)  The Company do not have any prior period errors to be 
disclosed separately in statement of changes in equity.

(v)  The Company do not have any charges or satisfaction 
which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the 
statutory period.

(vi)  The Company have not advanced or loaned or 
invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), 
including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the 
understanding that the Intermediary shall:

	 (a) 	 directly or indirectly lend or invest in other 
persons or entities identified in any manner 
whatsoever by or on behalf of the company 
(Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

	 (b) 	 provide any guarantee, security or the like to or 
on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

(vii) The Company have not received any fund from any 
person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding 
Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in 
writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:

	 (a) 	� directly or indirectly lend or invest in other 
persons or entities identified in any manner 
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party 
(Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

	 (b) �provide any guarantee, security or the like on 
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries,

(viii)  The Company does not have any loans and advances 
in the nature of loans to promoters, directors, KMP 
and other related parties without terms or repayable 
on demand.

(ix) The Company does not have any transaction which 
is not recorded in the books of accounts that has 
been subsequently surrendered or disclosed as 
income during the year as part of the on going tax 
assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, 
search or survey or any other relevant provisions of 
the Income Tax Act, 1961).

(x) 	 The Company has not been declared as wilful 
defaulter by any bank or financial institution or 
government or any government authority.

(xi) The Company does not have investment in shares 
of any company therefore compliance for laters of 
companies as prescribed under companies Act 2013 
are not applicable

(xii) �The Company do not have any immovable property 
therefore further disclosure as required by company 
act is not applicable.

(xiii) The Company does not have any investment property.

(xiv) �Company is not required to submit statement 
of current assets with the bank and therefore 
reconcilation of the statement filed by the company 
with bank and the books of accounts is not 
applicable.

(xv) The Company has not revalued any item of property, 
plant and equipment.

(xvi) The Company does not have any transactions where 
the company has not used the borrowings from banks 
and financial institutions for the specific purpose for 
which it was taken at the balance sheet date	

(xvii) �The Company have not entered into any scheme(s) 
of arrangements during the financial year.

(xviii) �The Company do not get covered under Section 135 
of Companies Act.

(xix) The following accounting ratios are disclosed:
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Notes forming Part of the Financial Statement 
ended 31st March, 2023
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Note 35: Approval of Financial Statements

The financial statements were approved for issue by the Board of Directors on ………..

As per our Report of even date attached For and on behalf of Board of Directors

For Gupta Nayar & Co., Sd/- Sd/-
Chartered Accountants Sanjeeb Kumar Rajesh Prasad
FRN : 008376N Director 

DIN: 03383641
Director 
DIN:08585975

Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
CA Satyabhama Gupta Mudit Mittal Kalpana Dubey 
Partner Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary 
M. No. 073295 M. No. F7396 

Place : Delhi
Date: 29.08.2023
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NOTICE 

HSRC INFRA SERVICES LIMITED
(Formerly High Speed Rail Corporation of India Limited)

(A subsidiary of Rail Vikas Nigam Limited)

CIN: U45204DL2012GOI239289

Regd. Office: R. No. 260, First Floor, August Kranti Bhawan,  
Bhikaji Cama Place, R.K. Puram, New Delhi-110066

Ph. No. 011-26738299 Email Id: info@hsrc.in
Website: http://hsrc.in/

Notice is hereby given that the 11th Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the members of HSRC Infra Services Limited 
(“the company”) will be held on Tuesday, 26th September, 2023 at 1130 Hrs at the Registered Office of the Company 
i.e., Conference Hall, First Floor, August Kranti Bhawan, Bhikaji Cama Place, R.K. Puram, New Delhi-110066 in 
compliance with the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made thereunder to transact the 
businesses set out in the Notice.

ORDINARY BUSINESS: 

To consider, and, if thought fit, to pass the following resolutions as Ordinary Resolutions, with or without modifications: 

1.	 To receive, consider and adopt the financial statements of the Company for the financial year ended 31st March, 
2023 on that date and the reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon and the comments of the 
Comptroller and Auditor General of India (CAG) thereon.

2.	 To authorize Board of Directors to fix the remuneration of Statutory Auditors for the financial year 2023-24.

	 To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification, the following resolution as Ordinary Resolution:

	 “RESOLVED THAT the Board of Directors be and are hereby authorized to fix, the remuneration of the auditors 
of the Company to be appointed by the office of the Comptroller & Auditor General of India for the financial year 
2023-24.”  

By order of the Board of Directors

Sd/-
(Kalpana Dubey)

Date: 29. 08. 2023	 Company Secretary
Place: Delhi	 M.No. F7396 

Notes:

1.	 A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE MEETING IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT A PROXY TO ATTEND 
AND VOTE AT THE MEETING INSTEAD OF HIMSELF AND THE PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE COMPANY. 
THE INSTRUMENT APPOINTING PROXY, IN ORDER TO BE EFFECTIVE, MUST BE DEPOSITED AT THE REGISTERED 
OFFICE OF THE COMPANY AT LEAST 48 HOURS BEFORE THE COMMENCEMENT OF THE MEETING. PROXY FORM 
IS ENCLOSED. 

2.	 Minimum of five members personally present will be quorum for the meeting. 

3.	 Corporate members are requested to send a duly certified copy of the board resolution authorizing their 
representatives to attend and vote at the meeting.

4.	 The documents referred to in the Notice of the AGM & related documents/registers etc. shall be available 
electronically for inspection without any fee by the members from the date of circulation of this Notice up to the 
date of AGM. Members seeking to inspect such documents can send an email to Kalpana.dubey@rvnl.org 

5.	 The venue for 11th AGM shall be the Registered Office of the Company i.e., Conference Hall, First Floor, August Kranti 
Bhawan, Bhikaji Cama Place, R.K. Puram, New Delhi-110066

To:	 	

1.	 All the shareholders of the Company

2.	 M/s. Gupta Nayar & Co., Chartered Accountants (Statutory Auditors)

3.	 All the Directors of the Company
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